
Document last changed: 4/15/2009 7:53 AM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, April 20, 2009 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

Work Sessions 
1:00 - 5:00 p.m. FY 09- 10 County  Budget    
 
Regular Agenda 
7:00 p.m. Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 CCHS D.R.E.A.M. Team Request Regarding Maple Park    

Item 4 Consideration and Discussion:  Recommendations of the Wild 
Horse Tour Advisory Group. 

Item 5 Consideration and Action  PB 04-45 Laurel Woods Section C: 
Request for an extension of a preliminary plat approval for 9 single 
family lots located on Wildflower Lane off Aydlett Road, Tax Map 
92, Parcel 63F, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 6 Public Hearing and Action  PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson:  
Request to amend the Currituck County Land Use Plan to 
designate approximately 57.58 acres of the Future Land Use map 
from Limited Service Area to Full Service Area and to amend Water 
Quality Policy (WQ5) to promote low impact development 
techniques.  The property is located on Fisher Landing Road, 
Jarvisburg, Tax Map 96, Parcel 29C, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 7 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-61 High Cotton:  Request for a 
Special Use Permit for 252 multi-family dwellings. The property is 
located at 1187 Caratoke Highway, Tax Map 22, Parcel 88, Moyock 
Township. 

1



Document last changed: 4/15/2009 7:53 AM 

 
Item 8 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-49 Currituck County Board of 

Commissioners: Request to amend the Currituck County Unified 
Development Ordinance, Chapter 2: Zoning Districts, Section 2.3.4, 
to require a community meeting for conditional zoning requests. 

Item 9 Public Hearing and Action  PB 09-10 Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners: Request to amend the Currituck County Unified 
Development Ordinance, Chapter 2: Zoning Districts, to reduce the 
minimum lot size in the RO1 zoning district from 40,000 to 20,000 
square feet. 

Item 10 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-60 Albemarle & Associates:  
Request to amend the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance to establish an Offshore Island Limited Access 
Residential (OI) zoning district. This district would allow for the 
development of lots for which the only means of access is through 
public trust waters. 

Item 11 Appointments to Library Board   

Item 12 Consent Agenda: 
1. Budget Amendments 
2. Crowder Construction Co CO#4 
3. Charge Tax Collector the Levy on Motor Vehicles for January 

Renewals  
4. Resolution supporting an alternative method of recognition for 

veterans status to Merchant Marine Seamen of WWII 
5. Petition to DOT, Lower Currituck Fire Dept for stop light and 

lower speed limit 
6. Approval of April 6, 2009, Minutes 

Item 13 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 14 County Manager’s Report 

Item 15 Closed Session: 
1. According to 143-318 (5) land acquisition, Donald Stone, Spot 

Road, to be used for any public purpose 

Adjourn 

 

 

2



03272009 1012 FAX 2524530017 CCHS 002

CURRITUCK COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
4203 Caratoke Highway

Barco NC 27917
2524530014

March 27 2009

Dear Currituck County Commissioners

TheDREAM Team from Currituck County Migh School would like to

request to be put on the agenda to be heard on Monday April 20 2009 at
700 pm

We recently were awarded a 500 grant to improve our community
and to educate the community about the dangers of tobacco use We would
like to adopt Maple Park We want to pick up all the cigarette butts in the
park plant some flowers and have a mural painted by our volunteers The
mural will be targeted at the dangers of tobacco use We will be glad to
have the mural approved by the county commissioners first

We thank you in advance for this opportunity Please feel free to

contact our advisor Mrs Sue CataenIngram at Currituck County High
School at 4530014

Sincerely

DREAM Team

Sue CataenIngram MSW

3



  
 
 

\\\ 
 

Currituck County  
Department of Planning 

Post Office Box 73 
Currituck, North Carolina 27927 

252.453.8555 
 (Fax) 252.453.8300 

 

WILD HORSE TOUR MEETING 
MARCH 12, 2009 

 
 
ATTENDEES 
 
Jay Bender, Jeff O’Brien, Scott Trabue, Billy Clayton, Banks Meredith, Bob White, Jerry 
Gillet, Alice Gillet, Kimberly Hoey, Connie Johnson, Rob Longo, Bob Wright, Jason Banks, 
Jason Litteral, Karen McCalpin, Lynne Wilson, Ben Woody 
 
 
The Wild Horse Advisory Group generally agreed that a voluntary approach is most 
appropriate for the upcoming tourist season.  Each of the operators in attendance agreed to 
follow the below recommendations.  The group felt that voluntary compliance with the 
recommendations will help determine the true impact of wild horse tours on the off-road 
area.  Periodic meetings of the advisory group will continue during the course of the season 
to discuss and monitor the agreed upon course of action. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

• TOUR COMPANIES WILL LABEL EACH SIDE OF EVERY COMPANY VEHICLE WITH DOOR 
DECALS THAT CLEARLY DISPLAY THE COMPANY NAME.  THE DECAL SHALL BE OF A 
SIZE THAT IS CLEARLY LEGIBLE (MINIMUM OF 4 INCHES IN HEIGHT).  THIS WILL BE 
COMPLETED BY MAY 15, 2009.   

 
• THE WILD HORSE FUND WILL ORGANIZE AN EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM FOR THE TOUR 

COMPANY OWNERS AND STAFF. THE TRAINING WILL INCLUDE MEMBERS OF THE 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND PLANNING DEPARTMENT. UPON COMPLETION OF THE 
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM, EACH TOUR COMPANY WILL BE SANCTIONED BY THE 
WILD HORSE FUND. 

 
• PROVIDE PROMOTIONAL INCENTIVES FROM THE WILD HORSE FUND AND/OR COUNTY 

TOURISM BOARD FOR TOUR COMPANIES PARTICIPATING IN VEHICLE LABELING AND 
THE EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM. 

 
• ENCOURAGE REALTY AND PROPERTY MANAGEMENT COMPANIES TO PROVIDE 

INFORMATION REGARDING WILD HORSE TOURS.  THIS INCLUDES WEB LINKS TO 
RULES AND REGULATIONS, STREAMING AUDIO MESSAGES, AND PROMOTION OF 
SANCTIONED TOUR OPERATORS. 

 
• CURRITUCK COUNTY WILL ESTABLISH A RADIO TRANSMITTER TO BROADCAST 

BEACH DRIVING REGULATIONS AND WILD HORSE INFORMATION.   
 
 
 

4



• WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE SHALL BE SENT TO DARE COUNTY OBX CHRYSLER, 
ENTERPRISE RENTAL CAR, AND MIDGETTE AUTO INFORMING THEM OF THE WILD 
HORSE ADVISORY GROUPS RECOMMENDATIONS.  THIS INCLUDES COUNTY RULES 
AND REGULATIONS FOR THE OFF-ROAD AREA. 

 
• SIGNAGE SHOULD BE ERECTED IN THE OFF-ROAD AREA THAT IDENTIFIES 

UNCONTROLLED INTERESCTIONS.  SIGNAGE MAY ALSO BE USED TO ADVISE 
TOURISTS NOT TO APPROACH WILD HORSES. 

 
• ESTABLISH VOLUNTEER “COURTESY PATROL” TO WATCH TOUR GROUPS AND HELP 

WITH TRAFFIC SITUATIONS.  LOCAL RESIDENTS NEED TO DOCUMENT VIOLATIONS 
AND REPORT TO THE WILD HORSE FUND, WHICH WILL COLLECT AND QUANTIFY 
DATA. 

 
• WILD HORSE SANCTUARY PATROL OFFICERS AND TOUR GUIDES WILL CARRY 

UNIFORM LOG BOOKS TO DOCUMENT SPECIFIC DATA REGARDING OBSERVED 
VIOLATIONS.  THIS INFORMATION WILL BE TURNED OVER TO THE WILD HORSE FUND 
ON A MONTHLY BASIS. 

 
• THE RECOMMENDATIONS MADE BY THIS ADVISORY GROUP SHALL BE CARRIED 

FORWARD IN ANY SPECIAL USE PERMITS THAT MAY BE GRANTED. 
 

• THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MAY CONSIDER ESTABLISHING A MORATORIUM ON 
NEW WILD HORSE TOUR COMPANIES UNTIL SUCH TIME AS REASONABLE 
REGULATIONS CAN BE STUDIED AND ADOPTED. 

 
        
The advisory group agreed to present these recommendations to the Board of Commissioners at a 
work session.  Staff will coordinate the dates and report back to the advisory group.  It was 
agreed the next meeting of the advisory group will occur at the end of May. 

5



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-6029 

FAX 252-232-3026 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Planning Staff 
 
Date: March 23, 2009 
 
Re:  Laurel Woods, Section C, Preliminary Plat Extension 
 
 
 
On March 13, 2007, the Planning Board voted to approve the preliminary plat for Laurel 
Woods, Section C.  This is a nine lot subdivision located on Wildflower Lane, off Aydlett 
Road.  The preliminary plat approval is due to expire on March 13, 2009.  On March 6, 
2009 the applicant, Charles Angus, submitted the attached letter (Attachment 1) 
requesting a two year preliminary plat extension of the subdivision.   
 
According to Section 11.10.2 of the UDO: 
 
11.10.2 Special Use and Conditional Use Permits 
 
B. The permit issuing authority may extend one time for a period up to two years the 

date when a permit would otherwise expire, if it concludes that:   
 

1. The permit has not yet expired, (Applicant submitted extension request prior 
to plat expiration) 

 
2. The permit recipient has proceeded with due diligence and in good faith; and,  

(Applicant states in March 6, 2009 letter that clearing and construction has 
been started.  Waterline installation was approved on September 23, 2008) 

 
3. Conditions have not changed so substantially as to warrant a new application.  

Successive extensions shall not be granted.  All such extensions may be 
granted without resort to the formal processes and fees required for a new 
permit.   (There have been no substantial changes in the application) 

 
Attached please find the minutes from the March 13, 2007 Planning Board meeting 
approving the original preliminary plat.   

6



 

PB 04-45 Laurel Woods, Section C 
Page 2 of 3 

Attachment 1 
 

 

7



 

PB 04-45 Laurel Woods, Section C 
Page 3 of 3 

Attachment 2 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION – March 13, 2007 
 
Mr. Delucia said that the applicant is amenable to the conditions.   
 
Mr. West asked why there are conditional approvals. 
 
Ms. Keifer said that in many cases conditions are advisory.  In some cases there are 
minor deficiencies that need to be addressed but don’t warrant keeping someone off of 
the agenda.  Conditionally approving projects is a standard practice. 
 
Mr. Delucia said that some are conditions that have to be met during construction. 
 
Mr. Keel motioned to approve the request as presented.  Mr. West seconded the 
motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

8



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-6029 

FAX 252-232-3026 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Ben Woody, AICP 
 Planning Director 
 
Cc: Charlan Owens, AICP 
 DCM Elizabeth City District Planner 
 
Date: February 26, 2009 
 
Re:  PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson Land Use Plan Amendment  
 
 
 
Eddie Valdivieso is requesting an amendment to the Currituck County Land Use Plan to 
designate approximately 57.58 acres of the Future Land Use map from Limited Service 
area to Full Service area.  Staff is also recommending a change to Water Quality Policy 
(WQ5) to properly promote low impact development techniques. 
 
As required by the Coastal Area Management Act (CAMA), the Board of 
Commissioners must approve a local resolution of adoption which includes findings that 
demonstrate this amendment is consistent with the policy objectives of the Plan.  
Additionally, the County must demonstrate the amendment will not adversely affect the 
provision of services and infrastructure.  Once the appropriate findings and local 
resolution of adoption are approved, the amendment will then be considered by the 
Coastal Resources Commission (CRC) for formal certification. 
 
Enclosed please find the following information: 

• map of the proposed amendment area (page 2) 
• case analysis for Full Service area request and addendum for Policy WQ5 (pages 3 - 9) 
• meeting minutes of the Planning Board (pages 10 - 11) 
• local resolution of adoption and findings of plan consistency (page 12) 
• Land Use Plan amendments (pages 13 - 14) 
• supplementary information submitted by the applicant (new pages 1 - 33) 

 
This request is tentatively scheduled to be considered by the CRC at their quarterly 
April meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me at 232-6029.

9



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 2 of 14 

 

10



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 3 of 14 

CASE ANALYSIS:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
April 20, 2009 

Land Use Plan Amendment  
PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 

 
 
 
TYPE OF REQUEST:  To amend the Currituck County Land Use Plan to designate 

approximately 57.58 acres of the Future Land Use map from 
Limited Service Area to Full Service Area. 

 
LOCATION:  Located on Fisher Landing Road, Jarvisburg,    
 
TAX ID:   Tax Map 96, Parcel 29C, Poplar Branch Township 
  
OWNER:     Jennifer W. Pittman 
  Susan F. & Thomas C. Williamson, Jr. 
  5105 Glen Forest Drive  
  Raleigh, NC 27612 
 
AGENT/APPLICANT: Quible & Associates, PC 
    PO Drawer 870 
    Kitty Hawk, NC 27948 
 
CURRENT LAND USE  
CLASSIFICATION: Limited Service Area 
 
PROPOSED LAND USE   
CLASSIFICATION: Full Service Area 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Agricultural (A) 

 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
  
 Land Use LUP Classification 
NORTH: Undeveloped, Sparse Residential Conservation 
SOUTH: Undeveloped, Residential Limited Service 
EAST: Undeveloped Limited Service 
WEST: North River NA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 4 of 14 

LAND USE PLAN  
ANALYSIS:  
 

Existing Map Classification-  Limited Service  
The purpose of the Limited Services Area class is to provide for primarily 
residential development at low densities. While low-density development 
may continue to locate in these areas, it is recognized that soil limitations, 
flood prone areas, and a lack of infrastructure and services may prevent 
these areas from ever reaching an urban level of development.  
 
Despite the overall low density of these areas, efforts should be made to 
encourage clusters of residential uses to preserve open space and to 
provide for a sense of a "community". Base development density should 
be 1 unit per acre but could be increased to 1.5 units per acre through 
overlay zoning depending upon whether service facilities are in place or 
planned and the potential impact on the surrounding community.  In the 
same instances where slightly higher density is considered appropriate a 
moderate mix of housing types such as semi-detached would also be 
considered reasonable. 
 
With respect to nonresidential uses, it is essential that the existing 
community character be preserved.  Design criteria should be established 
to ensure that commercial development protects and preserves the 
existing community in scale, architectural style, materials, landscaping, 
and site design.  In general, neighborhood commercial uses are more 
appropriate than large scale commercial complexes.  However, business 
designed to serve the tourist industry such as small gift shops or agri-
tourism related uses should not be prohibited provided the character and 
intensity of the use is in keeping with the character of the surrounding 
area.   

Proposed Map Classification-  Full Service 
Areas designated as Full Service are those parts of the county that are 
preferred for community centers.  A broad range of infrastructure and 
service investments have been provided or will be made available by the 
public and/or private sectors. Infrastructure investments may include, for 
example, community level or centralized water, parks, schools, fire and 
rescue facilities. 
 
With respect to residential development, base development density is 
contemplated to be 2 units per acre but could be increased to 3-4 units 
per acre through overlay zoning depending upon services available and 
the potential impact on the surrounding area.  A greater diversity in 
housing types (i.e. semi-detached, attached, multi-family) would be 
considered appropriate in the Full Service areas. 
 
 
 
 
 

12



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 5 of 14 

With respect to nonresidential uses, it is essential that the existing 
community character be preserved.  Design criteria should be established 
to ensure that commercial development protects and preserves the 
existing community in scale, architectural style, materials, landscaping, 
and site design.  Nonresidential uses may include clusters of businesses 
serving the immediate area and, where appropriate, a more extensive 
market territory. 

 
Jarvisburg Sub-Area – The policy emphasis of the Jarvisburg Sub- Area 
is to allow the area to accommodate quality residential development at 
low densities while preserving the rural landscape between 
developments. Similar to the Grandy area, but at a lower overall density, 
new residential development should be encouraged to locate in compact, 
village like clusters, preferably near existing, non-agricultural activities 
and services.  

 
SUPPORTIVE POLICIES 
 
POLICY PA1: Public access to the sound and ocean waters of 
Currituck County is essential to the quality of life of residents and 
visitors, as well as the economy of the area. The County supports 
the establishment of ADDITIONAL PUBLIC AND PRIVATE 
ACCESS opportunities to the waters of Currituck County. 
 
POLICY PA5: PUBLIC AND PRIVATE MARINAS offering access 
to area waters should be encouraged when developed in 
accordance with the CAMA specific use standards for marinas 
(i.e. docks for more than 10 vessels). Marinas shall not be 
approved, however, that are incompatible with nearby land uses 
or whose designs fail to meet the environmental quality and 
development standards of the County’s Unified Development 
Ordinance. 

 
POLICY PA6: MARINAS IN UPLAND LOCATIONS generally shall 
be preferred over marinas in open water, thereby better 
preserving the visual appearance of the shoreline as well as 
avoiding the “consumption” of available public trust surface 
waters. 
 
POLICY ED1: NEW AND EXPANDING INDUSTRIES AND 
BUSINESSES should be especially encouraged that: 1) diversify 
the local economy, 2) train and utilize a more highly skilled labor 
force, and (3) are compatible with the environmental quality and 
natural amenity-based economy of Currituck County. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 6 of 14 

UNSUPPORTIVE POLICIES 
 
POLICY HN1: Currituck County shall encourage development to 
occur at densities appropriate for the location. LOCATION AND 
DENSITY FACTORS shall include whether the development is 
within an environmentally suitable area, the type and capacity of 
sewage treatment available to the site, the adequacy of 
transportation facilities providing access to the site, and the 
proximity of the site to existing and planned urban services.  For 
example, projects falling within the Full Services areas of the 
Future Land Use Map would be permitted a higher density 
because of the availability of infrastructure as well as similarity to 
the existing development pattern. 
 
POLICY TR11: ACCESS TO HIGHER INTENSITY 
DEVELOPMENT shall generally not be permitted through an area 
of lower intensity development. For example, access to a multi-
family development, a major park facility or other large traffic 
generator shall not be permitted through a local street serving a 
single-family residential neighborhood. 
 
POLICY AG3: County ACTIONS CONCERNING 
INFRASTRUCTURE (e.g. schools, parks, and utilities) and 
regulations shall serve to direct new development first to targeted 
growth areas near existing settlements identified as Full Service 
Areas on the Future Land Use Map, rather than “leapfrogging” to 
locations in the midst of farmland and greenspace identified as 
Rural and Conservation areas on the Future Land Use Map.   
 
POLICY ML1: Currituck County recognizes the particular interest 
of residents and property owners in the Mainland Area in 
PRESERVING FARMLAND AND OPEN SPACE. The County 
shall exercise diligence in applying policies, plans and actions that 
will encourage compact growth and the preservation of farmland 
and open space in the Mainland Area. 
 

CAMA LAND  
SUITABILITY: According to the land suitability analysis included in the Land Use 

Plan, the site is primarily classified as low (approximately 18.1 
acres) and least (approximately 15.33 acres) suitable for 
development. There are limited amounts of the site classified as 
medium (approximately 10.8 acres) and high (approximately 13.5 
acres) suitability. 

 
 The land suitability analysis is a process for identifying land that is 

most suitable for development.  It ranks land from least to most 
suitable for development based on characteristics such as soil 
septic suitability, proximity to water lines, presence of wetlands, 
etc.   

 
 

14



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 7 of 14 

PUBLIC SERVICES   
AND UTILITIES:   The site is located within the Jarvisburg Elementary School 

District. The Lower Currituck Volunteer Fire Department provides 
fire protection for this area. Public water is not available to this 
site. The nearest water line stubs off of Grandy Road 
approximately 2,000 feet eastward on Fisher Landing Road.     

 
TRANSPORTATION:  The site is accessible by vehicle from Fisher Landing Road and by 

boat from the North River. 
 
FLOOD ZONE: Approximately 38 acres of the site are located in a Flood Zone AE 

(7) and approximately 2 acres are located in a Shaded “X” Flood 
Zone.   

 
WETLANDS: Approximately 19.31 acres of wetlands are located on the site.   
 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils map indicates the property contains 

primarily suitable soils (approximately 25 acres). The rest of the 
site is mostly comprised of non-suitable soils (approximately 20.4 
acres).  There are limited amounts of marginal (9 acres) soils. 

 
STAFF 
ANALYSIS:    The staff has the following comments and concerns regarding 

the proposed Land Use Plan Amendment: 
 

The Land Use Policies contained in the Land Use Plan are to be 
viewed as official policy positions of Currituck County government 
once adopted. As such, the policies should remain substantially 
unchanged over time. Frequent changes to the policies would 
undermine their effectiveness in achieving intended planning and 
management objectives. The policies are designed to maintain a 
consistent and predictable direction for County government 
decisions over a period of several years. They further provide a 
basis for future decisions regarding growth and development, 
capital improvements, provision of County services, environmental 
protection, intergovernmental planning and cooperation, and other 
related matters. 

 
• The subject property is currently located in an area designated 

as Limited Service by the Future Land Use Map.  There are 
Full Service areas both to the north and south.  However, 
these areas are more than a mile in either direction.  
Amending this property to allow for the Full Service 
designation could encourage a “leapfrogging” style of 
development instead of encouraging development in targeted 
growth areas.       

 
 
 
 

15



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 8 of 14 

• Additional area designated as Full Service could allow for 
expansion of commercial/retail areas. This could result in 
additional neighborhood serving commercial areas and a net-
gain for Currituck County in tax generation and job creation.  

 
If the Board of Commissioners is inclined to recommend approval 
of this request, staff suggests the following be considered: 
 
• Future development proposals for the subject property must 

maintain public access, public boat launching, and parking 
facilities to the North River (Policies PA1, PA2, PA5, ML3). 
 

• Any future marina proposal shall participate and become a 
Certified Clean Marina in the North Carolina Clean Marina 
program (Policy PA7). 

 
• In an effort to preserve water quality and natural habitat, 

priority should be given to the retention and preservation of 
wetland areas.  It is recommended that no development, land 
disturbing, or logging activities occur in areas designated as 
wetlands. (Policies ES2, WQ 5, WQ 6, ML1) 

 
• Future development proposals for the subject property must 

demonstrate that water quality is not adversely impacted.  The 
use of Low Impact Development (LID) techniques and wetland 
preservation should be given high priority.  In addition when 
developing near the shoreline, precedence should be given to 
“soft” stabilization approaches including but not limited to 
preservation of existing vegetation, creation of natural, living 
shorelines for areas needing stabilization, and establishment 
of vegetative buffers (Policies ES4, WQ3, WQ6, and 
Jarvisburg Sub-Area description). 
 
 
 

16



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 9 of 14 

STAFF ADDENDUM 
 
 
The Planning Staff is also recommending an amendment to Policy WQ5 of the adopted Land 
Use Plan.  During the course of implementing the Plan, staff has determined this policy is being 
interpreted in a manner that may be ineffective in achieving its intended goals.  The policy 
currently reads as follows: 
 

POLICY WQ5: Development that preserves the NATURAL FEATURES OF THE 
SITE, including existing topography and significant existing vegetation, shall be 
encouraged. COASTAL AND NON-COASTAL WETLANDS shall not be 
considered part of a lot’s acreage for the purpose of determining minimum lot 
size or development density. Open space developments shall be encouraged to 
REDUCE IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREAS associated with new development 
and redevelopment. 

 
The intent of the policy is to protect the natural features of a site and promote water quality.  
This policy also proposes a net density for development projects, which is inconsistent with 
current county regulations that allow the limited inclusion of 404 and 401 wetlands in density 
determinations.  It is important to note that the corresponding section of the LUP Action Plan 
and Implementation Schedule does not recommend the implementation of a net density 
calculation...rather it provides the county amend the UDO to allow incentives for development 
buffers and incorporate low impact development concepts. 
 
Considering the intent of Policy WQ5, staff does not feel a density calculation is an effective 
means of promoting water quality.  Based on current trends in stormwater management and 
environmental planning, staff feels an emphasis on conservation of natural areas, integration of 
low impact development techniques, and buffers from wetlands are more appropriate strategies.  
With that in mind, staff recommends the following changes to Policy WQ5: 
 

POLICY WQ5: Development that preserves the NATURAL FEATURES OF THE 
SITE, including existing topography and significant existing vegetation, shall be 
encouraged.  If COASTAL AND NON-COASTAL WETLANDS shall not be are 
considered part of a lot’s acreage for the purpose of determining minimum lot 
size or development density, Low Impact Development techniques or appropriate 
buffers shall be integrated into the development.  Open space developments 
shall be encouraged to REDUCE IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREAS associated 
with new development and redevelopment.  

 
 

17



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 10 of 14 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. Bell asked if this adjoined the Webber Tract. 
 
Ms. White stated yes. 
 
Mr. Clark asked what part of the conservation area are wetlands. 
 
Mr. Woody provided a map showing the conservation area and wetlands. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if this is similar to spot zoning when you change a designation in the middle 
of another designation. 
 
Mr. Valdivieso stated that this would not be spot zoning because it is not a zoning issue.  Mr. 
Valdivieso provided an overview of the site.  Mr. Valdivieso stated that this is an appealing site 
for a potential upland marina because it complies with the county policies and LUP.  They can 
get to the North River without impacting wetlands.  They recognize that there may be some 
permitting issues that may prohibit a public upland marina from going on this site.  
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if you don’t get the permitting for the marina, would you still continue with the 
development of the project. 
 
Mr. Valdivieso stated that the marina is the jewel of this project, if this is not available; they 
would still like to focus on a waterfront community. 
  
The planning board discussed full service vs. limited service area, retail feasibility, traffic, free 
public access to the marina, connectivity to the marina, and Land Use Plan Policy WQ5.  
 
Mr. Woody stated they would like to make a revision to Policy WQ5 even if this amendment 
does not go through. The recommendation would be, if wetlands are used to determine density 
then a developer must integrate low impact development techniques or appropriate buffers. 
 
Mr. Valdivieso stated one of the recommendations states that in an effort to preserve water 
quality priority should be given to the retention and preservation of wetland areas. He 
understands the intention of this recommendation, but if in the future they want to put a 
boardwalk for public access through wetlands they don’t want it to be a problem.  
 
Mr. Woody stated that when an applicant has to get a CAMA major permit, CAMA requires the 
permit to be consistent with the LUP. CAMA takes policies like WQ5 quite literally.  
 
Mr. Clark asked if this were to be approved by the Planning Board and the Board of 
Commissioners, could the applicant come back with a different idea. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that if it were to be approved you still would need to go through a rezoning 
process.  Mr. Woody stated that if the LUP amendment is approved by the BOC, the county 
would become the applicant and this would be the county’s request before the Coastal 
Resources Commission.  
 
Mr. Valdivieso stated if this is approved by CAMA they will bring it back as a conditional zoning 
district request which conditions can be applied. 
 

18



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 11 of 14 

Mr. Kovacs explained the development and public input of the 2006 Land Use Plan which is 
updated every five years.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. Clark motioned to recommend approval to amend the Currituck County Land Use Plan to 
designate approximately 57.58 acres of the Future Land Use map from Limited Services Area to 
Full Service Area as presented and with the amendment to LUP Policy WQ5. Ms. Robbins 
seconded the motion. Ayes:  Mr. Clark, Mr. Etheridge, and Ms. Robbins.  Ayes:  Mr. Bell, Mr. 
West, Mr. Midgette, Mr. Kovacs, and Ms. Wilson. Motion failed. 

19



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 12 of 14 

RESOLUTION OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE CAMA LAND USE PLAN 

 
 WHEREAS, the County desires to amend its 2006 CAMA Land Use Plan, 
specifically the Future Land Use Map, to designate approximately 57.58 acres as “Full 
Service Area” from “Limited Service Area”; and  
 

WHEREAS, the County also desires to amend its 2006 CAMA Land Use Plan to 
amend Water Quality Policy (WQ5) to promote low impact development techniques; and  
 

WHEREAS, on February 10, 2009, the Planning Board recommended denial of 
the draft amendment to the CAMA Land Use Plan; however, the Board of 
Commissioners finds the amendment to be consistent with the objectives of the Plan; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County conducted a duly advertised public hearing on the draft 
amendment to the CAMA Land Use Plan at the Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Commissioners on Monday, March 16, 2009; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amendment to the Land Use Plan has been evaluated for its 
consistency with other existing policies and no internal inconsistencies exist; and  

 
WHEREAS, the amendment is consistent with the currently approved North 

Carolina Coastal Management Program and the rules of the Coastal Resources 
Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the amendment is consistent with the six management topics 
outlined in the County’s Land Use Plan; and  

 
WHEREAS, the amendment does not violate any state or federal laws, 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Commissioners of  
Currituck County, North Carolina, has adopted the draft CAMA Land Use Plan 
amendment; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Manger of Currituck County is 
hereby authorized to submit the adopted CAMA Land Use Plan amendment to the State 
for certification as described above. 
 
Adopted this 16 day of March 2009. 

20



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 13 of 14 

Proposed Map Amendments 
Appendix I. Maps, Map 11.1 Future Land Use Map is amended by adding establishing a Full 
Service area and an inset depicting sub-area boundaries as shown below: 

 

 

Inset Map 

21



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 14 of 14 

Proposed Text Amendment 
 
Section 11: Land Classification System, Table 11.1 is amended by adding the following 
underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language: 

 
Table 11.1 Comparison of Land Allocated to Future Land Use and Projected Land 
Needs, 2025 
Land Use Class Total Acres 

Allocated to 
Each Land 
Class 
(a) 

% of Each 
Land Class in 
Development 

(b) 

Total Acreage 
Available for 
Development 
as Projected 
(a) x (b) 

Total 
Acreage 
Projected for 
Development 

Full Service Areas 17,653 17,711 80% 14,122 14,169  
Limited Service Areas26,626 26,568 65% 17,306 17,269  
Rural Areas 40,218 10% 4,021  
Conservation Areas 81,223 2% 1,624  
Totals 165,720 -- 37,073 37,083 37,183 

 
 
 

Proposed Policy Amendment 
 
Section 9: Land Use and Development Policies, Water Quality Policy (WQ5) is amended by 
adding the following underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language: 

 
POLICY WQ5: Development that preserves the NATURAL FEATURES OF THE 
SITE, including existing topography and significant existing vegetation, shall be 
encouraged.  If COASTAL AND NON-COASTAL WETLANDS shall not be are 
considered part of a lot’s acreage for the purpose of determining minimum lot 
size or development density, Low Impact Development techniques or appropriate 
buffers shall be integrated into the development.  Open space developments 
shall be encouraged to REDUCE IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREAS associated 
with new development and redevelopment 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



 1

Land Use Attributes 
Proposed Fisher Landing Village and Jarvisburg Marina 

(57.58 Acres- Pittman Tract) 
February 2009 

 
A land use plan (LUP) amendment application has been filed with Currituck County requesting a Full Service Area 
designation for the Pittman Tract in the Jarvisburg sub-area. The site is currently classified as a Limited Service Area 
district. While such a request is considered in a nonspecific scenario for allowable uses in a Full Service district, the 
intent of this application is to support a specific waterfront and mixed use development with public, private, and 
economic development components. 
 
While independent of the LUP request, a “conditional district” PUD zoning application is currently being prepared for 
submittal by the next available filing date.  This application is intended to compliment and track closely behind the 
LUP application. It will also serve to expedite the rezoning process in consideration of significant commercial interest 
in the proposed development.   Commercial interest to date is strong due to the potential of a waterfront development 
concept, and if environmental permits are granted, amenities such as a boat access and/or docking areas would enhance 
the opportunity for a theme-based  retail interest.   
 
A Full Service designation is needed to support the proposed Fisher Landing Village residential condominium density.  
It is planned as desirable waterfront community with water related recreational amenities for the residents, with 
opportunities for public access as well. Waterfront access to the North River, the Albemarle Sound, and the Intercoastal 
Waterway would be a unique attribute for this development, and to the Currituck County mainland community.  Given 
the increase in density, zoning approval, and requisite environmental permitting, such a location could feasibly support 
uses such as a local market, eatery, retail shop(s), water sports and recreational activities, and related light commercial 
uses in keeping with the overall architectural theme and spirit of the proposed development and surrounding coastal 
agricultural community.     The zoning application will request approval of a residential zoning and Conditional District 
-Planned Unit Development overlay designation, to include 10% of the area in LBH zoning to support the non-
residential possibilities for the development.  Architectural themes are envisioned with “Village” feel, managed through 
covenants and restrictions.    
 
  
Fishers Landing Village will be a valuable asset to the County and bring a number of opportunities.   According to a 
study prepared for Currituck County by the UNC Center for Competitive Economics, “Currituck’s Tourism Industry is 
a Precious Asset”, and “its Retail Potential is Understated”.     With zoning approval and environmental permitting, this 
development could potentially provide amenities and support associated uses to boost tourism and retail sales in the 
County.    The study speaks of “targeted retail” which would be allowed under the requested LUP and Zoning request.     
Other needs identified by the study which potentially could be met by the development include:   jobs during 
construction and jobs in the Village businesses; balancing the County’s economic base between the beaches and the 
mainland to mitigate storm vulnerability of the beaches and their eroding shorelines; and leveraging opportunities for 
off-season attraction of visiting family groups typical of Currituck through the eco-tourism uses of the public area and 
educational facility.   
 
In addition to the UNC study, if approved, the project plans would address and/or meet stated local goals and 
objectives.   The residential community would be pedestrian-friendly with internal pedestrian circulation.   Wetlands 
and other environmental sensitivities would be avoided. Public access to the North River would be included in a 
CAMA major environmental permit application.   The following Currituck County policies could  be met if the 
proposed LUP amendment and PUD zoning applications are approved, if policy WQ5 (gross density calculation) is 
brought into compliance with other County ordinances, and if a major CAMA permit is issued:  
 

o Policy PA1- public access to the water and public use of the coastline  
o Policy PA5- public boat access  
o Policy CD8- mixed use development  
o Policy WQ6- preservation and protection of vegetated buffers  
o Policy ML3- access to the ocean and estuarine waters by mainland residents  
o Policy ES2- non-coastal wetlands conservation  

 
In summary, the proposed LUP, supported by the rezoning request and policy considerations, can meet many goals and 
objectives of Currituck County and provide an opportunity for desirable economic growth.    The Full Service District 
designation and amendment of WQ5 will facilitate building at a density required to support desirable public elements 
proposed with the development, as well as potential  retail components that will undoubtedly compliment and/or 
facilitate other commercial opportunities on the mainland.     This unique resort development has the potential to  
capture and preserve environmental attributes, recapture local history via theme-based non-residential components, 
increase waterfront recreation and access on the mainland, create educational opportunities via commercial and 
recreational uses (i.e. eco-kayak tours, nature walks, etc), and enhance economic development opportunities for the 
mainland- all within a pedestrian friendly waterfront residential neighborhood.                  

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



PB 08-61 High Cotton 
Special Use Permit 

Page 1of 12 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2009 
Special Use Permit 

PB 08-61 High Cotton 
 
 
ITEM:  SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR 252 MULTI-FAMILY 

DWELLINGS 
 
LOCATION: 1187 Caratoke Highway, Moyock Township 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: Conditional District - General Business (CD-GB) 

- The following GB uses are excluded from the property: 
o Reclamation landfill 
o Demolition landfill 
o Convenience center 
o Mobile homes 

- Outdoor storage shall be fully screened from public rights of way 
using a combination of landscaping and/or opaque fencing. 

- Site access shall be limited to one access point from Caratoke 
Highway, but access from other roadways is not prohibited. 

- No more than one-tenth of one acre of development or land 
disturbing activities, except for roads, utilities, or other necessary 
public improvements, shall occur in Army Corps of Engineers 
delineated wetlands. 

- A 50’ buffer along the upland portion of the property adjacent to 
Rowland Creek Canal (on north-west side of the property) shall be 
provided. No land disturbance or development shall occur in this 
buffer area except as needed for required maintenance of the canal. 
Maintenance of the canal shall require approval from the necessary 
state and local agencies 

 
TAX ID:  Tax Map 22, Parcel 88 (002200000880000) 
 
OWNER: Highland Properties 
 
APPLICANT: Edgewater Construction 
 
NARRATIVE: 
Edgewater Construction is requesting a special use permit for a 252 dwelling apartment 
complex on this 101.1 acre site. In the development impact statement submitted 12-19-
08, the applicant states this project will provide workforce housing options in a mixed 
use development.  
 
This application has been submitted with preliminary engineered construction 
drawings.  Should the Board of Commissioners approve the special use permit, a 
revised plan including final engineered construction drawings and all State permits 
must be approved by the Technical Review Committee prior to the commencement of 
any construction or land development activities. 
 

56



PB 08-61 High Cotton 
 Special Use Permit 

Page 2 of 12 

 
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Residential and Wetlands Zoned: A 
SOUTH: Agricultural Zoned: A 
EAST: Agricultural Zoned: A 
WEST: Agricultural - Ranchland Sub. (Across 168) Zoned: C, A, R 
 
DENSITY: The proposed gross density is 2.49 units per acre on the 

entire 101 acre property. The multi-family project area is 
17.2 acres with a net density of 14.65 units per acre. Since 
there is no subdivision being proposed, the applicant is 
utilizing the UDO provision for Multi-Family developments 
(section 3.2.6) and using the entire 101 acre property for the 
project. 

 
STREETS: The streets are required to be built to NCDOT Design and 

Construction standards. The proposed entrance road is 
proposed to be a private street. 

 
FIRE: This development is located within the jurisdiction of the 

Moyock Volunteer Fire Department. The applicant is 
proposing to install fire hydrants, but is not proposing to 
install a sprinkler system in the apartments. 

 
WATER: This development is proposing to connect to county water. 

There is an elevated water storage tank on the property. 
 
WASTEWATER: This property was denied a conventional wastewater system 

permit on February 13, 2007 by Albemarle Regional Health 
Systems. The applicant is proposing to connect to a planned 
central wastewater system at the Currituck Reserve 
subdivision. 

 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils Map indicates the areas 

proposed for development contain poorly drained soils. 
 
OPEN SPACE: The required open space for the 101 acre property is 30.3 

acres (since the applicant is using the entire 101 acres to 
calculate density, a corresponding calculation must be used 
to establish open space).  The open space is proposed to 
be distributed throughout the site, with 6.0 acres common 
open space provided within the multi-family development. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

57



PB 08-61 High Cotton 
 Special Use Permit 

Page 3 of 12 

 
DRAINAGE: The applicant is proposing to use an engineered stormwater 

system. The initial drainage plan was denied at the 
November 19, 2008 TRC meeting because it was based on 
uncertain data. A revised engineered drainage plan has 
been submitted and reviewed that addresses earlier 
concerns with regard to site elevation and the seasonal high 
water table. 

 
 
TRC REVIEW 
A Technical Review Meeting was held on November 19, 2008 and the reviewing 
agencies had the following comments: 
 
Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
Approved with the following comments: 
• An engineered plan has been submitted that addresses earlier concerns regarding 

elevations and the seasonal high water table.  The proposal is to build up the entire 
site above the 100 year storm/base flood elevation of 5 feet above seal level.  The 
same principle was used at the Currituck Crossing subdivision. 

 
Building Inspections, Spence Castello 
Approved with the following comments and conditions: 
• Foundations will need to be engineered due to poor soil compaction. 
• A soils engineer report will be required for all buildings. 
• May need handicap parking at the garage. 
 
North Carolina Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens 
Approved with the following comments: 
• A 30 foot buffer is required along the Rowland Creek Canal.  Indicate Normal Water 

Level (NWL) of the canal and the 30 foot buffer on the Master Plan and Site Plan.  
Activities and/or development within the 30 foot buffer may require a CAMA Permit. 

 
North Carolina Department of Transportation, Roger Ward 
Denied with the following comments: 
• Several of the major land uses have changed from the site plan previously 

submitted and approved. As such, I think a revised TIA needs to be completed 
reflecting the new land uses and construction phasing. 

• In consideration of all the changes, I would suggest consideration of revoking the 
driveway permit recently issued. The new revised master plan may require different 
roadway improvements and/or a different timetable for those improvements to occur. 
Bonding for a traffic signal and a phase 2 installation was required under the 
previously submitted site plan and driveway permit. 

 
***Staff notes a revised Transportation Impact Analysis has been submitted to NCDOT 
for review. 
 
 
 

58



PB 08-61 High Cotton 
 Special Use Permit 

Page 4 of 12 

 
QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 
 
Special Use Permit Criteria and Suggested Staff Findings: 
 
Special Use Permits are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the 
administration of the UDO. Through the Special Use Permit procedure, property uses 
which would otherwise be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed 
subject to Conditions of Approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on 
surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a Special Use Permit, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria 
and suggested findings of fact are outlined as follows: 
 
1. The Application is complete: 
 

• The application is not complete as it does not include a letter of commitment 
from a wastewater provider as required by Section 9.2.7.2(E).  The applicant will 
need to demonstrate central wastewater capacity, or the Board of 
Commissioners will need to issue the Special Use Permit contingent upon the 
applicant receiving the appropriate approvals. 

 
2. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible Uses as a 

special use indicated with an “S”: 
 

• This use complies with the Table of Permissible uses and is allowed in the CD-
GB district placed on the property on 9-2-2008. 

 
3. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of this 

ordinance: 
 

• The project generally meets the requirements of the UDO.  Any environmental 
concerns associated with the development of the site must be properly 
addressed prior to commencement of the proposed use. 

 
• The additional conditions recommended by staff ensure the development will 

meet or exceed the requirements of this ordinance. 
 
4. The special use will not materially endanger the public health or safety: 
 

• The use will not directly endanger the public health of safety provided 
stormwater is properly managed on this site. 

 
5. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will be 

in harmony with the area in which it is located: 
 

• The adjoining properties are agricultural and low density residential dwellings. 
This use is not necessarily in harmony with the area because there is not 
compatible high density or commercial development in the immediate area.  

59



PB 08-61 High Cotton 
 Special Use Permit 

Page 5 of 12 

However, it may provide an opportunity to establish a controversial use in an 
otherwise isolated area. 

 
6. The proposed use will be general conformity with the Land Use Plan or other 

officially adopted plan: 
 

• The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the subject property as Rural and within the 
Moyock sub-area.   
§ In the Rural Classification, population densities are generally very low and 

development density is anticipated at no more than 1 unit per 3 acres.  
Preferred uses include very low density residential and non-residential uses 
are typically discouraged 

§ For the Moyock sub-area, residential development densities should be 
medium to high depending upon available services.  In areas where central 
sewer is proposed or existing, additional services are available and the 
character of the surrounding areas supports it, higher density ranging from 3-
4 units per acre could be considered through the use of overlay zones.  
There are existing environmentally sensitive areas that cannot support higher 
density development and do not have access to services that are therefore 
classified as Rural or Conservation. 

 
• Policy ES1 states that new development shall be permitted in areas with suitable 

soil and where adequate infrastructure is available.  For existing development 
located on poor soils, and where sewage treatment upgrades are necessary, 
engineering solutions may be supported, provided that environmental concerns 
are fully addressed. 

 
• Policy WS3 states that Currituck County endorses utilities extension policies that 

focus water and sewer services (1) within existing developed areas and in 
nearby targeted growth areas identified as Full Service and Limited Service 
areas, (2) where development densities would make the provision of all public 
services more efficient, (3) where the land is particularly well suited for 
development and (4) away from environmentally sensitive areas, such as areas 
with extensive wetlands. 

 
• Policy HN5 states that affordable forms of housing other than manufactured 

housing are often overlooked in meeting the needs of young families, workers of 
modest income, senior citizens and others. 

 
• Staff feels there are Land Use Plan policies that support attached housing in the 

County (staff also supports the idea of diverse housing options spread 
throughout the county).  However, the location and environmental conditions of 
this particular development are not supported by the Land Use Plan as it is 
currently adopted.  For this reason, this special use does not comply with the 
2006 Land Use Plan. 

 
 
 
 

60



PB 08-61 High Cotton 
 Special Use Permit 

Page 6 of 12 

 
 
 
7. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public 

facilities, including, but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, 
and other county facilities.  Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be 
followed for determining when applicable facilities are adequate.  Such facilities 
must be in place or programmed to be in place within two years after the initial 
approval of the sketch plan.  In the case of subdivision and multi-family 
development at the sketch plan/special use, preliminary plat or final plat stage, the 
Board of Commissioners may establish time limits on the number of lots/units 
available for development to assure adequate public facilities are available in: 

 
• The proposed multifamily use will not exceed the county's ability to provide 

adequate public facilities. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed development does not meet the criteria for granting a Special Use 
Permit and therefore staff recommends denial until such time as the following items 
can be corrected or addressed: 
 
1. The project must provide a letter of commitment from a wastewater provider as 

required by Section 9.2.7.2(E) of the UDO prior to the development of the property. 
 
2. The current 2006 Currituck County Land Use Plan does not support a high density 

development on this property. Therefore, staff recommends that this project not be 
approved until a Moyock small area plan is adopted or the Land Use Plan is 
amended to reflect the impact of central wastewater on the Moyock Sub-Area. 

 
Should the Board of Commissioners approve this request, staff recommends the 
following permit conditions: 
 
1. An NC Erosion and Sedimentation Control permit and NC Stormwater permit shall 

be submitted prior to land disturbing activities.  
 
2. A revised Transportation Impact Analysis must be approved by NCDOT.  Any 

recommended changes by NCDOT shall be included on construction drawings. 
 
3. This project shall not retain any vested rights until a revised site plan and 

construction drawings are submitted and approved by the Currituck County 
Technical Review Committee. Any approvals issued by the Board of Commissioners 
are conditional on receiving full TRC approval prior to being granted a vested right. 

 
4. A minimum 35% of the entire 101 acre site must be reserved for open space 

associated with the multifamily project.  The open space dedication must include 
50% upland area and be accessible to the residents of the multifamily development. 

 

61



PB 08-61 High Cotton 
 Special Use Permit 

Page 7 of 12 

5. To ensure the zoning conditions are being met on wetlands disturbance, staff 
recommends that all land disturbing activities not occur within 5 feet of the wetlands 
and no improvements be proposed within 10 feet of the wetlands. 

62



PB 08-61 High Cotton 
 Special Use Permit 

Page 8 of 12 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. West asked if wetlands were used to determine the density. 
 
Mr. Woody stated yes. 
 
Mr. West asked if the walking trails will be on the wetlands. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that they could have some on wetlands, but 50% of the required 
open space will have to be on uplands.  
 
Ms. Wilson asked for clarification on where the walking trails will be within the open 
space area. 
 
Ms. Venable stated the trails they are proposing from the buildings will be one mile 
long.  
 
Ms. Venable stated that 2 foot of fill will have to be provided on site for the areas that 
need to be filled.   
 
Ms. Venable addressed the Land Use Plan (LUP) and stated the Board has the ability 
to overrule the LUP. When the plan was put together water and sewer was not 
available on the site. One-third of the property is wet which they want to put this into 
open space. Sixty-seven acres is uplands along Caratoke Highway which is surrounded 
on three sides with a full service district.  Within this property which is zoned general 
business/commercial you can have mixed uses that would included assisted living, 
retail, and multi-family.  There is a water tower on the site. Ms. Venable provided a 
letter from the county that stated in 2010 sewer will be provided by the county right in 
front of the property. If sewer is not available through the county then they would have 
a sewer system on the back of the site. Ms. Venable provided an overview of the site. It 
will be a gated community; the buildings will be 3 stories, 1 to 3 bedrooms, a recreation 
building, pool, open space, walking trail, and a fitness facility.  
 
Mr. Everhart stated that the county will provide Smith Packett (assisted living) a force-
main line to the wastewater treatment plant which is scheduled to be completed in July 
of 2010. The line will be in front of their project, but the question of whether the Board 
of Commissioners will allow residential hook-up to the sewer system is still being 
discussed. Mr. Everhart stated if the commissioners do not allow residential hook-up 
then they would put in a package plant on the site.  
 
Mr. West stated he was under the impression that High Cotton was connected to the 
assisted living facility. 
 
Mr. Everhart stated they are selling them the property for the assisted living facility. 
 
Mr. West referred to the letter the board received from Mr. Innes referring to this project 
being affordable housing and a gated community.  
 
Mr. Everhart stated it will be a gated community for security purposes because of the 
amount of traffic with 252 units. 

63



PB 08-61 High Cotton 
 Special Use Permit 

Page 9 of 12 

 
Mr. West asked Mr. Everhart to define affordable living. 
 
Mr. Everhart stated approximately $780 per month. They will consist of 1, 2, and 3 
bedroom units. There will be seven full time staff on site.  
 
Mr. Clark stated in the letter it states these units are being built so the residents of 
Currituck will have affordable housing. Is there a plan in place to give Currituck 
residents priority over other residents? 
 
Mr. Everhart stated they are willing to work this out.  Mr. Everhart stated Currituck’s 
work force will get first shot at the units, but they have to be competitive. The project 
will be built in two phases. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if any of the units will be handicap accessible.  
 
Mr. Everhart stated yes. 
 
Ms. Wilson stated she agrees that Currituck does need affordable housing, but is 
concerned because the current 2006 Land Use Plan does not support a high density 
development on this property.  
 
Mr. Everhart stated the stormwater system and parking lots will all drain into a peat 
filtration system. Before any stormwater off these buildings or parking lots gets into one 
of the retention ponds it will have been filtered 94%.   
 
Mr. Bell asked how long it would take to construct your own wastewater system. 
 
Mr. Everhart stated approximately 3 months using a pre-engineer system which is 
factory made. 
 
Mr. Clark asked Mr. Woody if the county has any ladder trucks. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that the county has a 35 foot height requirement for buildings.  
 
Mr. West asked if all the Technical Review Committee (TRC) agencies submitted 
comments on this project. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that all the county departments did review this plan. 
 
Mr. Everhart stated they have had three public meetings on the project and ended up 
with 150 positive comments and had only one negative comment. 
 
Ms. Kinney stated this project is needed in the community which blends the young and 
old. Ms. Kinney passed around a petition with signatures in favor of the project. She 
stated this project is good for the community and it is a good location.  
 
Mr. Innes stated that to succeed in business your product or service must meet two 
criteria: 1) that people must want it, and 2) that it will benefit the community.  The 

64



PB 08-61 High Cotton 
 Special Use Permit 

Page 10 of 12 

assisted living and multi-family meet these criteria.  This is not subsidized housing, it 
will be a community which is well run, and it will provide homes for people who do not 
want or cannot afford a single family home.   
 
Mr. Kovacs stated the biggest issue is the LUP, if this request was approved, will this 
approval change the LUP?  
 
Mr. Woody stated they are just considering the Special Use Permit.  
 
 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Etheridge motioned to recommend approval with staff recommendations for a 
Special Use Permit for 252 multi-family dwellings. Mr. Kovacs seconded the motion. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

65



PB 08-61 High Cotton 
 Special Use Permit 

Page 11 of 12 

 
 

 

66



PB 08-61 High Cotton 
 Special Use Permit 

Page 12 of 12 

 

67



Clubhouse
& Pool

New Resident
Parking

Trail Around
Pond

Existing Edge
of Wetlands

Park

Pond with
Fountain
0.6+/- Ac

Pond
1.2+/- Ac

Garage (typ)

C
aratoke H

w
y (U

S R
TE 168)

Tot Lot

Bldg
 T

yp
e '

B'

3 S
tor

y -
 12

 U
nit

s

Pond
1.3+/- Ac

Existing Wetlands
1,642,906 Sf or 37.71 Ac

Bldg Type 'A'3 Story - 24 Units

Dumpster (typ)

50' Buffer line

N/F
(Second Tract)

Jennings Property
Db 257, Pg 592

15' Side Yard
Setback

30' Front Yard
Setback

15' Side Yard
Setback

Entry Gate

10'x35' Sight
Triangles

10'x70' Sight
Triangles

20' Front Yard
Setback

Pump
Station

Site

9'x18' Parking with
2' overhang (typ)

Bldg Type 'A'3 Story - 24 Units

Bldg Type 'A'

3 Story - 2
4 Units

Bldg
 T

yp
e '

A'

3 S
tor

y -
 24

 U
nit

s

Bldg Type 'A'

3 Story - 24 Units

Bldg Type 'A'

3 Story - 24 Units

Bldg
 T

yp
e '

A'

3 S
tor

y -
 24

 U
nit

s

Bldg
 T

yp
e '

A'

3 S
tor

y -
 24

 U
nit

s

Bldg
 T

yp
e '

A'

3 S
tor

y -
 24

 U
nit

s

Bldg Type 'C'

3 Story - 12 Units

B
ldg Type 'C

'

3 Story - 12 U
nits

Electrical Service
Connection

County Pump
Station Site

6" pvc sanitary
service with

cleanout (typ)

Possible Future
Outparcel

Possible Future
Outparcel

SITE

Tabulation:
Total Site Area: 101.14 Ac
Existing Wetland Area:   37.71 Ac
Current Zoning:       GB (General Business)
Special Use Permit: Multi-Family (Apartments)
Multi-Family Units Allowed:         2.5 Units/Ac or 252
Multi-Family Units Provided:                            252

Building and Parking Setbacks:
Front = 20' (30' along NC 168)
Side = 15'
Rear = 25'

Maximum Building Height = 35'
Building Height Proposed = 35' Max

Surface Parking: 492 Spaces
Handicap Spaces:   12 Spaces
New Resident Parking:   20 Spaces
Garage Parking:   52 Spaces
Total Parking Provided: 576 Spaces
Total Parking Required:              2/Unit or 504 Spaces

Gross Building Floor Area = 335,199 Sf
Common Open Space Required: 30%
Common Open Space Provided: 35%

Flood Zone: AE (El 5)
Firm Map Number: 3721804000J
Panel Number: 8040
Dated: December 16, 2005
Minimum Finished Floor Elev = 6.0
 

High Cotton
Special Use Permit

Site Plan
October 9th, 2008

Currituck County, North Carolina

Vicinity Map
not to scale

Owner
Highland Properties, Inc.
378 Caratoke Highway
Moyock, North Caroline 27958
P. 252.435.2531
Contact: Brian Innes

Developer
Edgewater Construction
759 South Bay View Road
Jarvisberg, North Carolina 27947
P. 252.202.6112
Contact: Warren Everhart

Engineer
Land Planning Solutions, LC
5857 Harbour View Boulevard, Suite 202
Suffolk, VA 23435-2657
P. 757.935.9014
F. 757.935.9015
Contact: Jeffrey P. Huentelman, PE

68



69



 
Staff Use  

                                        CASE #: _____            DATE FILED __________       
                                                                                                                                    FEE RECEIVED_____ REVIEWED BY ____________  

 
 
  

CURRITUCK COUNTY  
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING  
REQUEST FOR A SPECIAL USE PERMIT  
  
Applicant:                                                       Owner:   
Name:  Edgewater Construction    Name: Highland Properties                
Address: 759 South Bay View Rd.              Address:378 Caratoke Hwy., Moyock, N.C.          
 Jarvisberg, NC       27947                                                 
Telephone:252-491-2185                 Telephone: 252-435-2531              
Fax Number:                  Fax Number: N/A              
E-Mail:                    E-Mail: N/A                
  
LEGAL RELATIONSHIP OF APPLICANT TO THE PROPERTY OWNER:   Contract Purchaser         
  

Project Information:  
  

Project Name: High Cotton                                 
Street Address: 1187 Caratoke Hwy., Moyock, NC 27958                            
                          (Obtain from Lucy Cardwell, Tax Department, at 252-232-4038)  
Parcel Id Number: 00220000088000                           
Total Tract Acreage: 101.00   Zoning District: GB             
Deed Book/Page Number and/or Plat Cabinet/Slide Number: Plat Cabinet I/Slide Number 50         
Existing Use:   Vacant                                
Proposed Use:             Multi-Family Residential                  
Proposed Use Classification Number(s):                 3.2.6      
Total square footage of land disturbance activity: +/- 18 a.c.          
Total square footage of lot coverage:   380,540 s.f.      
   Total structure coverage:                   139,877      
  Total vehicular area (including sidewalks): 240,663                   
   Total existing coverage:                    0 .s.f      
   Total proposed coverage:                   380,540 s.f.     

Gross floor area of all buildings:                335,199 s.f.     
   Existing gross floor area:                   0 s.f.      
   Proposed gross floor area:                   335,199 s.f.     
  

**************************************************************************************  
Purpose of Special Use Permit: To allow multi-family dwellings in Zoning District GB    
               
                                  
                          
                            
The applicant should respond to the following issues that the Board of Commissioners must find in order to  
issue a Special Use Permit.  Answers should be supported by facts.  

  
 

 

70



 

  
 
 
a.  The use will not materially endanger the public health or safety;    

           The proposed use of multi-family apartments does not endanger public health or safety.                    
                         
                                            
     

b.  The use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property;   
             The proposed use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property. Where required, buffers will be  
  provided to separate the proposed use from surrounding properties.      
                                      
                                                        
      

c.  The use will be in harmony with the particular neighborhood or area in which it is to be located  
                              (even though the proposed use and surrounding uses are generally permissible in the same district  
               and therefore usually compatible);    

             The proposed multi-family use will work well in the neighborhood by providing quality homes and public   
   open spaces for residents.  The proposed multi-family will also create a mix of uses giving residents 
   the luxury of walking to restaurants, possible employers and future neighborhood retail stores.       
 
   d.  The use will be in general conformity with the Land Use Plan, Thoroughfare Plan, or other plan  

  officially adopted by the board;    
             The proposed use conforms with the land use plan’s classification of residential and will conform to other   
               officially adopted plans.            
                                               
                                                          
    e.  The use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, including, but not  

                                limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.  
            The use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities.     
                         
                                          
                              
                              

 I, the undersigned, do certify that all of the information presented in this application is accurate to the best  
of my knowledge, information, and belief.    
  
Further, I hereby authorize County Officials to enter my property for purposes of determining zoning  
compliance.  All information submitted and required as part of this application process shall become public  
record.  
  
  
  
                  
Signature  

 

71



 
 
 
 

OWNER VERIFICATION  
  
  
NOTE:   IF THE PERSON WHO IS REQUESTING THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TAKE                                      
ACTION ON A PARTICULAR PIECE OF PROPERTY IS NOT THE OWNER OF THE PROPERTY,                                 
THEN THE ACTUAL OWNER OF THE LAND MUST COMPLETE THIS FORM. IF THE PERSON                                 
WHO IS REQUESTING THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TO TAKE ACTION ON A                                                    
PARTICULAR PIECE OF PROPERTY IS THE OWNER OF THE PROPERTY, PLEASE DISREGARD                              
THIS FORM.    
  
Dear Sir of Madame:  
  
I am the owner of the property located at  1187 Caratoke Hwy., Moyock, NC 27958                  
                                        
  
I hereby authorize  Edgewater Construction      to appear with  
my consent before the Currituck County Board of Commissioners in order to ask for a Special Use Permit  
to  allow multi-family residential         at this  
location.    
  
I understand that the Special Use Permit, if granted, is permanent and runs with the land.  I authorize you to  
advertise and present this matter in my name as the owner of the property.  
  
I HEREBY AUTHORIZE COUNTY OFFICIALS TO ENTER MY PROPERTY FOR PURPOSES  
OF DETERMINING ZONING COMPLIANCE.  ALL INFORMATION SUBMITTED AND  
REQUIRED AS PART OF THIS APPROVAL PROCESS SHALL BECOME PUBLIC RECORDS.  
  
If there are any questions, you may contact me at my address:  
  378 Caratoke Hwy., Moyock, N.C.                                   
or by telephone at 252-435-2531  . 
  
                Respectfully yours,  
  
  
                                
                Property Owner  
  
  
Sworn to and subscribed before me, this the     of     , 20____  
  
  
                          
Notary Public  
  
My commission expires: _________________ 

 

72



 

 

5857 Harbour View Boulevard, Suite 202 
 Suffolk, Virginia 23435 

     O. 757.935.9014   F. 757.935.9015 
  

      NOTICE OF APPLICATION 
  
TO:          Adjacent Property Owners and Interested Parties   
FROM:   Land Planning Solutions 
DATE:    October 16, 2008 
RE:          Petition for Special Use Permit for High Cotton  
  
PETITION FOR_Special Use Permit____________________________________:   
  
[  ]    To rezone    acres from     to                
  
[ X ]  To obtain a (Amended) Special Use Permit (SUP) for  Multi-family residential within the GB zoning   
 base district             
                          

                                                   
[  ]  To obtain (Amended) Sketch Plan/Special Use Permit approval for a Major Subdivision for         
       lots.  (Number)  
  
[  ]  To obtain a (Amended) Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for                   
               
                                              
  
[  ]  To obtain a Variance from the UDO (description)         
               
                           

                        
[  ]  To consider an Appeal (description)            
               
                          
 
The property is located  (PHYSICAL STREET ADDRESS, TAX MAP & PARCEL NUMBER)    
 1187 Caratoke Hwy., Moyock, NC 27958         
 00220000088000            
                                        
                              
The property is currently owned by Highland Properties        
   
The Currituck County Planning Board/Board of Commissioners/Board of Adjustment will receive public testimony  
regarding the above referenced application (in favor or in opposition) at the following public  
meeting(s)/hearing(s). Anyone who wishes to attend or give testimony may do so. The meeting is held in the  
Historic Currituck County Commissioners Room, 153 Courthouse Road.  
  
Planning Board Meeting [date and time]   
Board of Commissioners Public Hearing [date and time]   
Board of Adjustment Public Hearing [date and time] -    (For Conditional Use, Variance, and Appeal Applications Only)   
  
  

 
73



 

 
 
 
The Currituck County Planning Board will hear this request at 7:00 p.m. on December 9, 2008 in the Historic  
Currituck County Commissioners Room at 153 Courthouse Road.  Please note that substantial changes in the  
application may be made following the meeting.  The public is invited to attend the meeting.    
  
The official PUBLIC HEARING will be held by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners at 7:00 p.m. on   
_January 5, 2009__ in the Historic Currituck County Commissioners Room at 153 Courthouse Road.   
  
If you have any questions regarding the hearing or the enclosed material, please contact the Currituck County  
Planning Department at (252) 232-3055.   
  
Information pertaining to this application is available at the Planning Department, 153 Courthouse Road,  
Currituck, NC, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.   
  
  
Land Planning Solutions 
 5857 Harbour View Boulevard, Suite 202 

   Suffolk, Virginia 23435 
  O. 757.935.9014   F. 757.935.9015 

 
   

 
 

74



 

 
 
APPLICATION FOR MAILING LIST  

  
Application is hereby made to the Planning Department for preparation of a listing of the names and  
mailing addresses of all property owners within 200 feet of the Subject Site indicated below, and further  
described on the attached Plan, as they appear on the Currituck County tax roll.   
  

 SUBJECT SITE:  High Cotton - 00220000088000                    
(Location)             1187 Caratoke Hwy., Moyock, NC 27958       
  
OWNER OF RECORD: Highland Properties                   
(Name & Address)          378 Caratoke Hwy., Moyock, N.C.        
                    

  
This application is made in conjunction with my application to Currituck County for the following on the  
subject property (Check appropriate item):   
  
____ CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT  
__X_ SPECIAL USE PERMIT (Sketch Plan)  
____ AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING MAP  
____ VARIANCE  
____ APPEAL  
  
The Planning Board will review this matter at its meeting of _December 9, 2008__ at 7:00 p.m. - for special use  
permits and rezoning requests. The Board of Commissioners will hold a public hearing on this application  
on _ January 5, 2009_ at 7:00 p.m. – for special use permits and rezoning requests.  The Board of  
Adjustment will hold a public hearing on this application on _NA_________ at 7:30 p.m. – for conditional  
use permits, variances, and appeals.  Please forward the requested mailing list to the following address or  
fax:   

   
         Land Planning Solutions 
        5857 Harbour View Boulevard, Suite 202 

          Suffolk, Virginia 23435 
         O. 757.935.9014   F. 757.935.9015 

   
  

APPLICANT’S CERTIFICATION  
    
This mailing list is requested for the purpose of fulfilling my obligation to notify by certified mail all  
property owners within 200 feet of the referenced Subject Site at least 10 days prior to the scheduled public  
meeting of the nature of my application and the time, date and place of the Planning Board and public  
hearing before the Board of Commissioners or Board of Adjustment public hearing.  My signature hereon  
indicates my acknowledgment and understanding of my responsibility as an applicant to notify the public  
of my application to Currituck County.  
  
Applicant’s Signature: _____________________________ Date: __________________   
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

75



 
 
 
 

 

5857 Harbour View Boulevard, Suite 202 
 Suffolk, Virginia 23435 

     O. 757.935.9014   F. 757.935.9015 

October 10, 2008 
 

NARRATIVE FOR HIGH COTTON 

 
High Cotton, along Route US Rt. 168, is the introduction of Moyock’s first mixed use business community.  High Cotton 
proposes to incorporate restaurants, hotels, neighborhood retail, an assisted living facility and multifamily all within walking 
distance of one another.  The idea of a walk-able community within a General Business zoning helps to cut down on traffic, 
i.e. vehicle trips per day.  It allows for a more sustainable community that is active both day and night, giving restaurants and 
retailer’s activity during all hours of operation.  It gives residents that ability to find employment or relocate to employment 
that they may walk to and from daily.  The increase of outdoor activity naturally helps to create a neighborhood watch, and a 
greater sense of community. High Cotton also introduces a high quality Multifamily residents that does not exist today in 
Currituck County.   

The proposed multi-family use at High Cotton is, private, high end residential community.  All units will be located in 12 
three-story buildings. The homes will be a mix of one, two, and three bedroom units. Open spaces and walkways throughout 
the development will provide the residents with recreational opportunities, as well as, ease of access to the surrounding uses 
within High Cotton.  This Community’s other amenities include a clubhouse, pool and children’s play area.   All existing 
wetlands will be preserved providing a natural private back drop for the multifamily community.    

 
 

76



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-6029 

FAX 252-232-3026 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Ben E. Woody, AICP 
 Planning Director 
 
Date: April 13, 2009 
 
Re:  PB 08-49 Currituck County: Conditional Zoning Text Amendment 
 
 
 
The enclosed text amendment was withdrawn by the Board of Commissioners at their 
October 20, 2008 meeting.  It is now being moved forward again for reconsideration by 
the Planning Board and Board of Commissioners. 
 
The amendment as presented would require a community meeting for conditional 
zoning requests. Currently the Unified Development Ordinance only recommends that a 
community meeting be held.  Additionally, it is worth noting that standard rezoning 
requests do not recommend or require any type of community meeting.  The Planning 
Board may wish to consider a uniform community meeting standard for any type of 
rezoning request to avoid discouragement of the conditional zoning process. 
 
What follows are the minutes from the March 10 Planning Board meeting and a draft of 
the text amendment as described above.  The Planning Board recommended 
unanimous approval of this request with the modification that a Planning Board member 
be present for the community meeting.  Rather than include this modification in the text 
of the UDO, staff is recommending it be integrated with the application materials. 
 
Should you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me at 232-6029. 

77



 

PB 08-49 Currituck County 
Conditional Zoning Amendment 

Page 2 of 4 

 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the planning board members will be required to participate in the 
community meeting. 
 
Mr. Woody stated the full planning board does not have to be present but it would be a 
good idea to have representation of the planning board at these meetings. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to recommend approval of the text amendment to require a 
community meeting for conditional zoning requests with the addition that a planning 
board member be present. Mr. West seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

78



 

PB 08-49 Currituck County 
Conditional Zoning Amendment 

Page 3 of 4 

Currituck County 
PB 08-49 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
An amendment to Chapter 2: Zoning Districts to require a community meeting for 
conditional zoning requests. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North 
Carolina that the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be 
amended as follows: 
 
 
Item 1: That Chapter 2: Zoning Districts, Section 2.3.4 is amended by deleting the 
strikethrough language and adding the following underlined language:  
 
Section 2.3 Conditional Zoning 
 
2.3.4 Community Meeting Recommended Required 
Before a hearing is held on an application for a conditional zoning district, it is 
recommended required that the applicant hold at least one community meeting.  The 
applicant shall indicate on the application, or at the hearing, whether that a community 
meeting was held and if so, file a report with the application Planning Board. The report 
should include, among other things, the manner and date of contact, the date, time and 
location of the meeting, a roster of the persons in attendance at the meeting, a 
summary of issues discussed at the meeting, and a description of any changes to the 
rezoning application made by the applicant as a result of the meeting.  
 
 
Item 2: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or 
any sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North 
Carolina by any court of competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application. 
 
 
Item 3: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day 
of    , 200 . 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 

79



 

PB 08-49 Currituck County 
Conditional Zoning Amendment 

Page 4 of 4 

 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    

80



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-3055 

FAX 252-232-3026 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:   Board of Commissioners 
 
From:  Planning Staff 
 
Date:  April 13, 2009 
 
Re:   PB 09-10 Currituck County: RO1 Minimum Lot Size 
 
 
 
The Currituck County Board of Commissioners is requesting a text amendment that 
would reduce the minimum lot size in the RO1 zoning district from 40,000 to 20,000 
square feet.  If approved, this request would primarily affect the Whalehead subdivision, 
Ocean Hill One subdivision, and Corolla Village area.  However, it is important to note 
that the majority of the platted lots in these areas are already in the range of 20,000 
square feet in size (particularly in the Whalehead and Ocean Hill One subdivisions).   
 
The remaining subdivisions in the Corolla area are typically zoned as Planned Unit 
Developments, which allow for a minimum lot size of 10,000 square feet.   
 
What follows are the minutes from the March 10 Planning Board meeting and a draft of 
the text amendment as described above.  The Planning Board recommended 
unanimous denial of this request. 
 
Should you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact Ben Woody at 232-6029.  

81



 

PB 09-10 Currituck County 
RO1 Minimum Lot Size 

Page 2 of 4 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. Midgette asked if this is county owned property. 
 
Mr. Woody stated the county wants to create two lots and deed the two lots to a private 
individual. In return the county would receive east-west roads in the Whalehead 
subdivision. 
 
ACTION 
Ms. Wilson motioned to recommend denial of the text amendment to reduce the 
minimum lot size in the RO1 zoning district from 40,000 to 20,000 square feet because 
the Whalehead subdivision is crowded and smaller ocean front homes are being taken 
down and replaced with larger homes.  Mr. West seconded the motioned. Motion 
carried unanimously.  
 
 
 

82



 

PB 09-10 Currituck County 
RO1 Minimum Lot Size 

Page 3 of 4 

Currituck County 
PB 09-10 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
 
An amendment to Chapter 2: Zoning Districts to reduce the minimum lot size in the RO1 
zoning district from 40,000 to 20,000 square feet.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North 
Carolina that the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be 
amended as follows: 
 
Item 1: That Section 2.7 Dimensional Requirements: Table of Area, Separation and 
Height, is amended by deleting the strikethrough language and adding the following 
underlined language: 
 

 
 
Item 2: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or 
any sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held unconstitutional or violate the Laws of the State of North 
Carolina by any court of competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application. 
 
Item 3: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day 
of    , 200 . 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 

 Minimum Lot Size (acres and square feet) 
Individual Lots & Minor 
Subdivisions (up to 5 

lots) 

Conventional 
Subdivisions 
(up to 40 lots) 

Conservation 
Subdivisions  

(41  lots or more)  
Other 

 
Zone Lot  

Size 
(1) 

Lot 
Width  

(2) 

Lot  
Size 

(3) 

Lot  
Width 

(8) 

Lot  
Size 

(4)  

Lot  
Width 

Lot  
Size Lot Width 

A(5) 3 acres 125 3 acres(6) 125 20,000 100 3 acres 125 

RA 40,000 125 40,000(6) 125 20,000 100 40,000 125 

R 40,000 125 40,000(6) 125 20,000 100 40,000 125 

RO1 420,000 125 420,000(6) 125 20,000 100 40,000 125 

83



 

PB 09-10 Currituck County 
RO1 Minimum Lot Size 

Page 4 of 4 

 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
******************************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    

84



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-6029 

FAX 252-232-3026 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Ben E. Woody, AICP 
 Planning Director 
 
Date: April 13, 2009 
 
Re:  PB 08-60 Island Lots 
 
 
 
Albemarle and Associates is requesting a text amendment to the UDO to establish an 
Offshore Island Limited Access Residential (OI) zoning district (Option 1).  This would 
allow for the limited development of lots for which the only means of access is through 
public trust waters.  In other words, this request would create a zoning district that 
permits construction activities on a tract of land that does not abut a public or private 
street, and is only accessible by water. 
 
As an alternative, staff is recommending the consideration of a text amendment that 
simply allows the development of island lots within the existing zoning and subdivision 
ordinances (Option 2).  Rather than create a separate zoning district for island lot 
development, this option would allow the owner of an island to receive a building permit 
under an exemption clause.  At their February 10 meeting, the Planning Board motioned 
to approve this option with additional language requiring a minimum lot size of eight 
acres and the availability of private parking on the mainland for each dwelling.  
However, due to a tie vote, the official action was for a recommendation of denial. 
 
Previously in June of 2005 and September of 2007, text amendment requests with 
similar objectives were submitted for consideration.  In both instances, the Planning 
Board recommended approval.  The original amendment request in 2005 was 
subsequently withdrawn and no action was taken by the Board of Commissioners.  The 
2007 amendment request was heard and denied by the Board of Commissioners at 
their January 22, 2008 meeting. 
 
Planning staff did recommend denial of the 2005 request and pointed out that if 
approved, the amendment would apply countywide and create increased pressure for 
the provision of County services (there are 21 privately owned islands off the Currituck 
Mainland, which may or may not be developable).  The following reasons were 
specifically given for denial at that time: 

85



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 2 of 12 

• County services will not be available for lots only accessible through public trust 
waters.  This includes Fire, EMS, Law Enforcement, Public School 
Transportation, etc. 

• Non-availability of public utilities such as water, power, telephone, cable 
television, etc. 

• There is no efficient means to provide solid waste disposal. 
 
The 2007 request generated many of the same concerns as the 2005 request, and as a 
result, planning staff met with other County departments regarding the provision of 
services.  This meeting was attended by the applicant, Planning Staff, and 
representatives of the Sheriff’s Office, Emergency Management, and Emergency 
Medical Services.   
 
Several concerns were raised at the meeting, during which it was decided to expand 
upon the existing draft while relying on the legal guidance of the County Attorney.  
Following the initial meeting it was determined by the Attorney that the County is not 
legally liable if there is an inability to provide timely services.  It was also recommended 
that the text amendment include a provision requiring a notification or waiver related to 
the possible inadequate provision of services.   
 
In contrast to previous amendment requests, this proposal submitted by the applicant 
takes a different approach by creating a zoning district that provides for the 
development of island lots.  While the procedure by which the development of island 
lots occurs is different, it still generates the same outcome...the development of lots that 
are only accessible by public trust waters. 
 
From an administration standpoint, planning staff prefers an amendment request similar 
to the one filed in 2007, but with additional detail regarding the provision of county 
services.  The creation of a new zoning district is cumbersome and would still require a 
rezoning application to be processed.  If the Board supports the allowance of island lots, 
it seems more appropriate to handle this in the existing zoning and subdivision 
ordinances.  Provided of course the applicant is able to resolve any issues expressed 
by the Sheriff’s Office, Emergency Management, and Emergency Medical Services. 
 
Finally, an additional meeting was held with the applicant and county service provision 
departments on December 3, 2008.  Concerns expressed at this meeting included a 
waiver of county services, the possibility of higher density development, and dredging 
associated with pier access. 
 
What follows are two draft versions of the text amendment as submitted by the 
applicant.  Option 1 creates an island zoning district and option 2 creates an exemption 
to the street access requirement.  Should you have any questions, do not hesitate to 
contact me at 232-6029.   

86



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 3 of 12 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (February 2009 meeting) 
Mr. West stated if there were no county services on these islands and they were to build 
on the island, then a county building inspector would have to go there to inspect the 
property.  
 
Mr. Woody stated the applicant would be responsible for providing transportation for the 
building inspector as well as other county departments.  
 
Mr. Overton stated what they are asking for in this text amendment is for individuals 
who own an island to have the right to be able to request a building permit. Mr. Overton 
stated this does not give them a building permit, it does not give them the right to 
“develop an island”, rather it is restoring their right to request a building permit.  
 
Ms. Robbins asked how septic systems would be pumped. 
 
Mr. Overton stated these are issues that would need to be worked out by the applicant. 
Mr. Overton stated that other coastal counties that do allow dwellings to be built on 
islands, these same challenges exist there as well and these challenges are addressed.   
 
The planning board discussed parking available on the mainland for each dwelling, the 
potential to create a major or minor subdivision on an island, creating a unique zoning 
district vs. creating exceptions to the requirements for street access and density. 
 
Mr. Overton stated that if the owners could exercise their right to request a building 
permit, then all zoning requirements would be applicable as it is with the mainland.  
 
Mr. Woody estimated that 90% of the potentially developable islands in the county are 
zoned Residential (R).  
 
Mr. Overton stated they have had several meetings with the sheriff and various 
emergency departments. Their concern has not been one of providing services but a 
concern of liability of timelessness.   
 
Mr. Bell stated his concern is with the environmental impact it will have on the islands.  
 
Mr. Clark stated he is concerned with changing the character of Currituck County by 
changing the zoning district to OI which would allow the possible development of these 
islands and set a precedent for the development off other islands in Currituck Sound.   
 
Mr. Overton stated that this request is only asking if you owned an island that you have 
the ability to ask for a building permit.  
 
Mr. West asked if the applicant would put a waiver that there is a density of 1 building 
per island.  
 
Mr. Overton stated he would prefer the density of 1 per 5 acres.   
 

87



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 4 of 12 

 
Mr. Woody stated that density related to CAMA wetlands cannot be used for lot area, so 
the minimum lot size would have to be exclusive of any CAMA wetlands.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to recommend approval of Option 2 with the addition of parking 
available on the mainland for each dwelling unit and a 5 acre minimum lot size.  Mr. 
West amended Mr. Kovacs motion and changed the 5 acres to 8 acres minimum lot 
size.  Mr. Kovacs seconded the motion. Ayes: Mr. West, Mr. Midgette, Ms. Wilson, and 
Mr. Kovacs.  Nays:  Mr. Bell, Mr. Clark, Mr. Etheridge, and Ms. Robbins.  Motion failed 
because it did not receive the majority of the votes.  
 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (December 2008 meeting) 
Mr. Midgette asked Mr. Webb if the density issue had been discussed with the 
applicant. 
 
Mr. Webb stated yes. 
 
The Planning Board discussed density, pier access, parking on the mainland, dredging, 
and a waiver for county services.  
 
Mr. Hain addressed questions from the board on the above issues. Mr. Hain stated they 
would like to create a new zoning district at this point.   
 
The Planning Board talked about tabling this proposal until they can hold a workshop 
with the county commissioners so some of the issues can be worked out. 
 
Mr. Hain stated his client would want to go forward with this request and not for it to be 
tabled.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to tabled PB 08-60 Island Lots until the Planning Board has a 
workshop meeting with the county commissioners.  Ms. Turner seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

88



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 5 of 12 

ALBEMARLE & ASSOCIATES ISLAND LOTS 
PB 08-60 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
OPTION 1 

 
An amendment to Chapter 2: Zoning Districts, Chapter 8: Parking, and Chapter 9: 
Infrastructure, to establish an Offshore Island Limited Access Residential (OI) zoning 
district. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North 
Carolina that the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be 
amended as follows: 
 
 
Item 1: That Section 2.2 Base Zoning Districts is amended by adding the following 
underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 
Section 2.2 Base Zoning Districts 
Base zoning districts are created to provide comprehensive land use regulations 
throughout Currituck County. There are 11 12 base zoning districts that provide for a 
variety of uses that are appropriate to the character of the areas in which they are 
located. For the purpose of this ordinance, Currituck County is hereby divided into the 
following base zoning districts. These districts shall comply with all of the general and 
specific requirements of this ordinance. 
 
A: Agricultural District 
RA: Mixed Residential District 
R: Basic Residential District 
RO1: Outer Banks Standard Residential District 
RO2: Outer Banks Limited Access Residential District 
RR: Residential Recreational District 
GB: General Business District 
C: Commercial District 
LBH: Limited Business Hotels Allowed District 
LM: Light Manufacturing District 
HM: Heavy Manufacturing District 
OI: Offshore Island Limited Access Residential District 
 
 
2.2.2 Residential Districts Established 
Each of these districts is designed and intended to secure for the persons who reside there 
a comfortable, healthy, safe, and pleasant environment in which to live, sheltered from 
incompatible and disruptive activities: 
 
G.  Offshore Island Limited Access Residential (OI) District: The Offshore Island 

Limited Access Residential (OI) district is designed to accommodate low density 
residential development (other than mobile homes) within the portion of the 

89



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 6 of 12 

Currituck County deemed by the County Commissioners not to be accessible by a 
road.  Due to the county’s inability to provide timely public services to areas not 
directly accessible by road, the following requirement shall apply to all 
development activities: 

 
1. A notification shall be placed on the final plat and included in any recorded 

deed that county services are limited and may not be available in a timely 
manner.  The notification language must be approved by the County Attorney 
prior to recordation. 

 
 
Item 2: That Section 2.5 Permitted Uses Table is amended by adding the OI zoning district 
to the table and including the following uses: 
 
Use OI 
Accessory Structures (residential) Z 
Accessory Uses Z 
Hunting & Fishing Lodges Z 
Single Family, detached-1 unit per lot Z 
Temporary Emergency, Construction, & Repair Residences Z 
Civil Defense Operations S 
Law Enforcement & Emergency Services S 
Boat Ramps (publicly owned) S 
Boat Ramps (privately owned) Z/C 
Campgrounds, Recreation (public) S 
Outdoor Recreational Facilities (private) S 
Outdoor Recreational Facilities (public) Z 
Agricultural Uses (nonexempt without livestock Z 
Agricultural Uses (nonexempt with livestock) Z 
Adaptive Reuse of Historic Properties C 
Telecommunications Towers (50 feet or less) Z 
Telecommunications Towers (non-commercial amateur 100 feet or less) C 
Towers, Other Including Water (50 feet or less) Z 
Utility Facilities  Z 
Wind Energy Facilities, Small System  Z 
Wind Energy Facilities, Large Scale  S 
Wind Energy Facilities, Utility Scale S 
 
 
Item 3: That Section 2.6 General Lot Provisions is amended by adding the following 
underlined language: 
 
2.6.1 Street Access 
No building, structure, or use of land for other than agricultural purposes shall be 
established on a lot which does not abut a state maintained street or road or private 
street as permitted in these regulations, other than lots in the RO2 and OI zoning 
districts, except as provided below: 

90



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 7 of 12 

 
C.  Every lot shall have access to it that is sufficient to afford a reasonable means of 

ingress and egress for emergency vehicles as well as for all those likely to need or 
desire access to the property in its intended use which access shall be no less than 20 
feet in width except within the OI District. With respect to lots within the R02 District, 
what is a reasonable means of ingress and egress" shall be determined in light of the 
fact that no state maintained road extends into this district and that access to all lots in 
this district is generally available only to 4 wheel drive vehicles and no access shall be 
created in the RO2 District which is less than 20 feet in width.  With respect to lots 
within the OI District, what is a "reasonable means of ingress and egress" shall be 
determined in light of the fact that no roads extend into this district and that access to 
all lots in this district is available only by boat. 

 
 
Item 4: That Section 2.7 Dimensional Requirements is amended by adding the following 
underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 
2.7.1 Dimensional Tables 
The following tables depict the allowable lot size, width, coverage, setbacks and height for 
a given use. The table should be used as a guide for development, taking into 
consideration the footnotes that are referenced. In some cases a specific use may be 
required to meet a specific requirement as set forth in Chapter 3. The first table; Table of 
Area, Separation and Height, provides information specific to underlying, or base, zoning 
districts as described in Chapter 2, while the second table; Table of Overlay District Area 
and Width, provides information exclusive to Overlay Districts as defined in Chapter 4, 
which also governs lot size and width.  
 
The densities set forth in this Section are permissible only if and to the extent that water 
and sewer facilities are or will be made available to serve the proposed density in 
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 9 of this Ordinance (Infrastructure) or if water 
and sewer facilities are not available to serve the proposed density, then such density shall 
be limited by the availability of conventional individual water wells and septic systems, 
being approved for the particular lot or parcel. In addition, nothing in this Section shall be 
interpreted as authorizing a type of use (e.g., multi-family) in a district (e.g., R, RO1, or 
RO2, or OI) where such uses are not permitted under the Permitted Uses Table. 
 
 
 

91



  

 
 

 Minimum Lot Size (acres and square feet) Min. Setbacks (feet)(7) 
Individual Lots & 

Minor 
Subdivisions (up 

to 5 lots) 

Conventional 
Subdivisions 
(up to 40 lots) 

Conservation 
Subdivisions  

(41  lots or more)  
Other 

 

Max. Lot Coverage 
(percentage) (9) 

Zone 
Lot  
Size 

(1) 

Lot  
Width 

(2) 

Lot  
Size 

(3) 

Lot  
Width 

(8) 

Lot  
Size 

(4)  
Lot  

Width 
Lot  
Size 

Lot 
Width 

< 
10,000 
sq. ft. 

10,000
– 

19,000 
sq. ft. 

> 
19,000 
sq. ft. 

Floor 
Area 
Ratio 

(10) 
Front  

 
Side 

  
Rear 

Max. 
Height 
(feet) 

A(5) 3 acres 125 3 acres(6) 125 20,000 100 3 acres 125 45 35 30 - 20 15 25 35 
RA 40,000 125 40,000(6) 125 20,000 100 40,000 125 45 35 30 - 20 15 25 35 
R 40,000 125 40,000(6) 125 20,000 100 40,000 125 45 35 30 - 20 15 25 35 

RO1 40,000 125 40,000(6) 125 20,000 100 40,000 125 45 35 30 - 20 15 25 35 

RO2 120,000 125 120,000(6) 125 1.5 
acres 100 120,000 125 45 35 30 - 20 15 25 35 

RR 40,000 125 40,000(6) 125 20,000 100 40,000 125 45 35 30 - 20 15 25 35 
GB - - - - - - 40,000 125 65 .400 20 15 25 35 
C - - - - - - 40,000 125 65 .400 20 15 25 35 

LBH - - - - - - 40,000 125 65 .400 20 15 25 35 
LM - - - - - - 40,000 125 65 .400 20 15 25 35 
HM - - - - - - 40,000 125 65 .400 20 15 25 35 
OI 40,000 125 40,000 125 20,000 100 40,000 125 45 35 30 - 20 15 25 35 

92



  

Item 5: That Section 8.2 Parking Area Dimensions is amended by adding the following 
underlined language: 
 
8.2.1 Parking Space Dimensions 
All districts and uses except for RO1 and RO2 single family and two family residences, and 
OI single family residences, shall meet the following dimensions: 
 
 
Item 6: That Section 8.3 Number of Parking Spaces Required is amended by adding the 
following underlined language: 
 
Section 8.3 Number of Parking Spaces Required 
 
A. All developments in all zoning districts, excluding the OI district, shall provide the 

number of parking spaces, as specified in the Table of Parking Requirements. 
 
 
Item 7: That Section 9.1 Street Standards is amended by adding the following underlined 
language: 
 
9.1.6 Required Deceleration Lanes 
 
C. All residential subdivisions proposing to have over 40 lots, and as recommended by 

NCDOT, all non-residential subdivisions that have access onto major arterials (US 
158, NC 168, NC 34, NC 136, NC 615, and NC 12) shall be required to install a 
deceleration turn lane in accordance with NCDOT standards, except in the RO2 and 
OI districts. 

 
 
9.1.8.2 Street Design Requirements 
 
D.  Except in the RO2 and OI districts, all proposed subdivision streets shall have 

direct access to an improved street that meets NCDOT design and construction 
standards or one that has been accepted for maintenance by NCDOT; 

 
 
9.1.8.5 Sidewalks 
Within all residential subdivisions over 19 lots, the subdivider shall be required to install 
concrete sidewalks along one side of all proposed streets in accordance with NCDOT 
regulations, except in the RO2 and OI districts. 
 
 
Item 8: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or 
any sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North 
Carolina by any court of competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application. 

93



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 10 of 12 

 
 
Item 9: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day 
of    , 200 . 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    
 

94



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 11 of 12 

ALBEMARLE & ASSOCIATES ISLAND LOTS 
PB 08-60 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
OPTION 2 

 
An amendment to Chapter 2: Zoning Districts, Section 2.6.1 Street Access, to allow 
zoning permits to be issued on lots for which the only means of access is through public 
trust waters. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North 
Carolina that the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be 
amended as follows: 
 
 
Item 1: That Section 2.6.1 Street Access is amended by adding the following underlined 
language and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 
2.6.1 Street Access 
No building, structure, or use of land for other than agricultural purposes shall be 
established on a lot which does not abut a state maintained street or road or private 
street as permitted in these regulations, other than lots in the RO2 zoning district, 
except as provided below: 
 
C. A permit for construction may be allowed on a lot that does not abut a public or 

private street, provided the lot is on an island completely surrounded by water and 
its only means of access is through public trust waters.  Notification shall be placed 
on the final plat and/or issued with any permit for construction indicating that county 
services are limited and may not be available in a timely manner. 

 
D. Every lot shall have access to it that is sufficient to afford a reasonable means of 

ingress and egress for emergency vehicles as well as for all those likely to need or 
desire access to the property in its intended use.  which This access shall be no 
less than 20 feet in width. 

 
1. With respect to lots within the R02 District, what is a "reasonable means of 

ingress and egress" shall be determined in light of the fact that no state 
maintained road extends into this district and that access to all lots in this 
district is generally available only to 4 wheel drive vehicles and no access shall 
be created in the RO2 District which is less than 20 feet in width.   

 
2. With respect to island lots completely surrounded by public trust waters, what 

is a "reasonable means of ingress and egress" shall be determined in light of 
the fact that lots on an island are not accessible by a public or private street 
and that access to all lots is available only by boat. 

 
 
 

95



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 12 of 12 

Item 2: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or 
any sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North 
Carolina by any court of competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application. 
 
 
Item 3: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day 
of    , 200 . 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    
 

96



Page 1 of 1

Gwen Keene

From Vicky Hagemeister vhagemeister@earlibraryorg
Sent Tuesday February 10 2009346 PM

To Gwen Keene

Subject Currituck Library Board members with terms due to expire

GwenThefollowing Library Board members have terms that are due to expire in June 2009

PaulOBriantlives in Moyock lris
Stephanie Miller eligible forreappointmentlives on Knotts Island
Dr Norman Dahm eligible forreappointmentlives in Harbinger

Ramona Humphrieslives in Moyock f
vn7larita Powell eligible forreappointment however she is unable to come to the meetings because of her jobSusan Vakoslives on Knotts Island ryt

The members who are not eligible forreappointment have already served the two consecutive terms allowed bythe bylaws

Vicky Hagemeister
Currituck County Librarian
4261 Caratoke Highway
Barco NC 27917

252 4530492

vhagemeisteraearlibraor
member East Albemarle Regional Library System

2102009 97



llJ

O O

n
td Gd bd Cz ri y

z
0 0

n
0

y z

c z c o d xz dd z

xo

o

N O Q O ci cNii O O ro O Oa
ro

O W vp d
O

C
pj

o
n n

o
p x

O

o
n n

p as G
rO r

O Z Z r pNO C7 Q C7 AR nO nnO zO 7C7n
v N v O N 7 N N

O
N

1 N O a r

J Oi p cl i a a Npp

O

i

00
Vi
00

t li
00 J

O
00 aq

z

o

Vl i
V a

y CD
n O

ry o n

O

Ot n N f7 O

O

n
O h

w
Vi

tii
1 w N

O
w w N A

W
A N

j
0O0 C1 N w N

cn

01
N

N
N

N oo w
t

O W 00 J
W

VWi W
N W O N

cC

N
W

J W W
N O O 01 O J

W

O
TJ

W
01 1
W Cn

N N
O

to 1
Vi

i O0 App
W

C

N O

N
h
Oo

N C 01 A N

O

n

n

y
b

hr
r

O

y

H

D

rD

y

b

fD

tyD
R

0
r

N
O
O
00

98



APPLICATION FORADVISORY BOARDS COMMITTEES

Datefc4

Name

Address

Phone ZS 3Z 33p6

Boardsor Committeeson which you would like to serve

Please check

ABC Board

lcultural Advisory Board

Airport Advisory Authority

oard ofAdjustment
Economic Development Board
Game Commission
Jury Commission

Land Transfer Tax Appeals Board
t7Library Board

ursing Home Advisory Committee

anning Board

Recreation Advisory Board
Senior Citizens Advisory Board
Social Services Board

iIourism Advisory Board
Whalehead Preservation Trust

Vorkforce Development Board

kEYd 5flioff1I42

Qualifications and reasons you would like to serve

Revised 12132006

Please return to County Managers Office
PO Box 39

Currituck NC 27929

99



ccrrltucko

APPLICATION FOR ADVISORY BOARDS COMMITTEES

Date I O

Name

Address

a

Phone g oa CttQ
Boardsor Committeeson which you would like to serve

Please check

ABC Board

Agricultural Advisory Board

Airport Advisory Authority
Board ofAdjustment
Economic Development Board
Game Commission
Jury Commission
Land Transfer Tax Appeals Board

Z Library Board

Nursing Home Advisory Committee
Planning Board

Recreation Advisory Board
Senior Citizens Advisory Board
Social Services Board
Tourism Advisory Board

Whalehead Preservation Trust
Workforce Development Board

Qualifications and reasons you would like to serve

a

Zoo

iuCam
SS j

1

v v

Please return to County ManagersOffice r
PO Box 39

Currituck NC 27929

Q 6 Y 4aWd 7 F i
s P9yd19 11

a

k k s3
44

Revised 12132006

100



Number 2009091

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

23690-545000 Contract Services 17,013$                     
23390-499900 Fund Balance Appropriated 17,013$                   

17,013$                     17,013$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  20th day of April 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Moyock Fire District Tax Fund (23) - Increased by $17,013.

Moyock Fire District (23690) - To appropriate funds remaining in the Moyock district tax fund 
for building and vehicle repairs as per letter dated March 23, 2009.

101



Number 2009092

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

66868-545000 Contracted Services 1,000$                     
66868-511010 Data Transmission 1,000$                       

1,000$                       1,000$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  20th day of April 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Southern Outer Banks Water System (66) - No change.

Southern Outer Banks Water System (66868) - Transfer funds for an additional internet 
connection for the GIS computer for the Southern Outer Banks Water System.

102



Number 2009093

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

55818-563000 Prof Services - Dist System 879
55818-593009 Dist Syst - DOT Betterment Costs 1,631
55818-592001 H20 Plant - RO Plant 45,696
55818-588003 Contingency - Dist System 44,815
5581-593007 Dist Syst - 16" RO to Currituck 3,391

48,206$                     48,206$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  20th day of April 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Mainland Water Construction Fund (55) - No change.

Mainland Water Construction Fund (55818) - To transfer budgeted funds to increase 
professional services for permit fees and increased cost of DOT betterment  on Tulls Creek 
Road, increase RO Plant for Crowder change order #4, and decrease 16" line from RO plant 
to Currituck Tower to adjust to bid price.

103



Number 2009094

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10390-499900 Fund balance appropriated 317,860                     
10380-425000 Public School Capital Bldg Fund 317,860                   

317,860$                   317,860$                 

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  20th day of April 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Other Revenues (10380) - To record approval of Public School Capital Building Funds for a 
portion of the debt payment for the Currituck County High School that is due June 2009.

104



Number 2009095

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

60808-516001 Repairs and Maintenance 35,000$                     
60808-545001 Contracted Services 35,000$                   

35,000$                     35,000$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  20th day of April 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Ocean Sands Water and Sewer District (60) - No change.

Ocean Sands (60808) - To transfer funds for additional repairs for sewer operations.

105



Number 2009096

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10510-513000 Utilities 2,000$                       
10510-516000 Repairs & Maintenance 8,000$                       
10510-531000 Gas, Oil & Tires 10,950$                     
10510-514000 Travel 2,000$                     
10510-521000 Rent 2,450$                     
10510-561000 Professional Services 3,500$                     
10510-536000 Uniforms 5,000$                     
1510-554000 Insurance & Bonds 305$                        
10510-59000 Capital Outlay 7,695$                     

20,950$                     20,950$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  20th day of April 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Sheriff (10510) - Transfer funds for operations for the remainder of this year.

106



Number 2009097

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

61818-557000 Refunds 1,400$                       
61818-540000 Worker's Compensation 1,400$                     

1,400$                       1,400$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  20th day of April 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Mainland Water Fund (61) - No change.

Mainland Water (61818) - This request is to increase refunds in order to refund a water tap 
fee for a customer that was initially paid in June 1996.  This property is in the Hunters 
Woods subdivision and there is currently no County water in this subdivision.

107



Number 2009098

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10795-576017 Community League - Aerobics 4,000$                       
10350-467017 Aerobics 4,000$                     

4,000$                       4,000$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  20th day of April 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $4,000.

Parks & Recreation (10795) - To budget funds for aerobics and yoga classes through 
recreation.

108



Number 2009099

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense
61818-533800 Chemicals 9,000$                        
61818-590000 Capital Outlay 1,500$                        
61818-514000 Travel 1,000$                      
61818-526000 Advertising 500$                         
61818-590003 Hydrants 5,000$                      
61818-536000 Uniforms 500$                         
61818-561000 Professional Services 1,500$                      

10,500$                      8,500$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  20th day of April 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Mainland Water Fund (61) - No change.

Mainland Water (61818) - Transfer for increased chemical cost due to preparations to start 
up new reverse osmosis plant. We will need to add antiscalant, sodium hypochlorite, and 
caustic soda along with the existing chemicals we are using.  Also for underground sprinkler 
system for Mainland plant to be installed by staff.

109



Number 2009100

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10660-557000 Refunds 8,500$                        
10390-499900 Appropriated fund balance 8,500$                      

8,500$                        8,500$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  20th day of April 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Planning (10660) - To refund special use permit for North Ridge development paid in 2006 
and the project application wasn't completed.

110



To: Crowder Construction Company, Inc. Date
1111 Burma Drive Project No.
Apex, NC 27539 Contract No.

Change Order No.

Item 
Number

Change in 
Contract Price

Change in 
Contract Time 

(Calendar Days)
(1) (4)

1 $71,353.00 0
2 $7,446.00 4
3 $14,907.00 0
4 Increase of Wire Size to Instantaneous Hot Water Heaters $4,161.00 0
5 $0.00 5
6 $300.00 0
7 $600.00 0

Net Change in Contract due to this Change Order $98,767.00 9

Contract Summary

Original Contract Amount $10,234,084.00 426
Added (Deducted ) By Previous Change Order(s) $99,806.00 7
Subtotal $10,333,890.00 433
Added (Deducted ) By This Change Order $98,767.00 9
Total Adjusted Contract $10,432,657.00 442

May 12, 2009
May 28, 2009

Recommended By: Date: 4/6/2009

Accepted By: Date:

Approved By: Date:

DISTRIBUTION: (Original documents to be provided as follows:)
Currituck County ARCADIS
Crowder Construction Company, Inc. Contractor's Surety

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

(2)

Description of Changed Quantities, Units, Unit Prices, Changes in Completion 
Schedule, etc.

Mainland Water Treatment Plant Reverse Osmosis Expansion
Currituck County, North Carolina

April 6, 2009
NC706021.3000

You are hereby requested to comply with the following changes from the Contract Documents:

-
4

ARCADIS G&M of North Carolina, Inc.

Daniel C. Williams

Increase of Instrumentation Allowance to Upgrade Remote Sites
Work Change Directive #11 Items
Work Change Directive #12 Items

Delays Created by Inclement Weather
Modification to Road Sign
Additional Asphalt Removal

Currituck County

Crowder Construction Company, Inc.

This document shall become an amendment to the Contract and all provisions of the contract shall apply hereto.
The Revised Substantial Completion Date based upon this and previous Change Orders is:
The Original Contract Substantial Completion Date is:

111



GJTtCK GT COUNTY OF CURRITUCK
i Tax Department

PO Box 9
Currituck North Carolina 27929

MEMORANDUM

TO Board of County Commissioners

FROM Tax Office
DATE Apri13 2009

Tracy Sample Tax Adminishator
252 2323005

252 2323568 FAX

SUBJECT Charge Levy on Motor Vehicles for January Renewals

Please charge to the Tax Collector the levy on motor vehicles for JanuaryThe following is a breakdown of the assessment and the total tax due

ASSESSMENT TAX AMOUNT

16457310 5269117

TSsaa

112



11 I loo a iiTiTcJiaINJ f

t r
c w

R

i 1 is
C rr

Cj
Czi i i

3
i terry

j

C
Lam

C
3 is
3 r ii
t

G ti iYr

i J
tY

S
r r

r

4
I

L1
L rm r n

n W rt
a

O GCv

T
G

r
ri

Gr
s

D
In

1 Rl PJ
O
3 0 W r J

rn

co
J er CO

D 3DD
xXx

N j
nuo
J CO In

Qte w
V r O ll Q

sa
n

NdaxwNsamatiooaNptioawH

i

q

i

irl

r r

13

0
r

I

n

1 t

0

r

n

m
n W
y N

r p

PRINTED IN US A pC RECYCLABLE 113



rlICJ v I I1 I t i i a 1ii 1 II i w r oi i I a I I I 1 it

fl r r
i

3
J

a

1 I
V

A I

I

j s ii Ci
i
I c
I

t

I
I

I

s

i

r i

c

s

i
I

I

i
i

I

I

t
I
I
I

I

i 7 I
I xa

I
I
I

Iy i
I

i
I

1

a ai I wlrix ryn i n
rl x 9 c i Crl
m i 17 Kt I c C
ntri r1 I x z
X 73 I 2
M t7 a I TI D

t7 trl a tY I I
n n I

17 CI
MI snI Iz InJ

c I G
nt nJ i P1 I G
u zv i

w m sm m
G
o i l I r

I
I

O

C ITI it i
7 i M i I

Y 3 t O
D 1f ttt M a

1 Jd

IRf M
p n I
r I
UI I

1
I

I
i
1

7 n

I
I

1
I
I m

ro ro I t
I ri

a a I m
IlY 4 I C7 t
i r 1 rl i

I I
O P O In I

V O O I I M

I a
I D
1 i
1
I

M

I

I P
V1
P

U7

nJ
I
I G
I rJ

0 U rti
cr nJ m r G

w I ri
t

f3 G 4n G I rr
J O rTG I I

Y

u

at M

n
c

T

C
n

S

r

r

n

D
4

b M 21
c

v m
y a

ro
u

PRINTED IN USA iRECVCtAerE114



 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
SUPPORTING AN ALTERNATIVE METHOD OF RECOGNITON FOR VETERANS 

STATUES TO MERCHANT MARINE SEAMEN OF WW II 
 

WHEREAS, Public Laws 95-202 and 105-368 bestowed veteran status on US Merchant Marine 
Seamen of WWII.   

WHEREAS, two specific U.S. government actions by US government have caused some 10,000 
merchant seamen to have been denied their due recognition:   

(1) The USCG relieving Masters of tugs, towboats and seagoing barges of the 
responsibility submitting reports of seamen shipped and discharged and 

(2) The National Maritime Administration ordered  ship’s logbooks to be destroyed 
because they were too costly to  maintain had removed the two main criteria required 
by the government to issue official recognition to those seamen, and 

WHEREAS, the average age of the remaining seamen is above 86 and the population of the US 
veteran is shrinking at an average of 850 per year causing time to be of the essence, and 

WHEREAS,  No costs are associated with this proposal as funds area already included in above 
public laws. 

WHEREAS, the Currituck County Board of Commissioners therefore request that immediate 
action be taken to correct this inconceivable action..  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
supports the attached proposal and so orders that this Resolution and attached proposal be 
sent to Senator Kay Hagan, Senator Richard Burr, Congressman Walter B. Jones and 
Congressman G. K. Butterfield and this matter be placed into action to ensure expedient 
passage. 

Adopted this 20th day of April, 2009  

             
       J. Owen Etheridge, Chairman 
       Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
 
Attest 

 

Gwen H. Keene, CMC 
 Clerk to the Board:   
(SEAL) 
 

115



PROPOSAL 

 

Committee:  ____________________  Principal Author: ___________________________   

 

Bill No: __________    Delegation: _______________________________ 

 

Title:  Alternative Methods of Recognition for Veteran Status to Merchant Marine Seamen of WW II 

  Be It Enacted by the one hundred & eleventh Congress of the United States 

 1. Preamble:   Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of 
 2. America in congress assembled; Public Law 95-202 & 105-368 provided veteran status for members  
 3. of the U.S Merchant Marine who served during WW II between 07 Dec, 1941 and 31 Dec, 1946 and  
 4. who were able to prove their service.  Various actions by governmental personnel have destroyed or  
 5. caused these documents to be unavailable.  These actions prohibit merchant marine veterans of 
 6. WW II from receiving the recognition and benefits of veteran’s status provided by these laws.  
 7. Alternative methods to prove service are required, as just compensation, for records lost by  
 8. government actions. 
 
 9. SECTION 1:  Records held by the Social Security Administration that denote dates, wages earned and   
10. companies  employed shall be utilized when USCG forms 718 (any date) or other official data such  
11. as ship’s logbook, etc, are not available. 
 
12. SECTION 2:  Validated testimony from the veteran or primary next of kin as to employment shall be 
13. allowed to determine eligibility; and 
 
14. SECTION 3:  Other official documentation offered by the veteran, shall constitute replacement of 
15. records that were destroyed or from other actions causing the required records to be unavailable 
16. that were committed by those responsible for the control and maintenance of veteran records. 
 
17. SECTION 4:  For the timeframe between 07 December, 1941 and 31 December, 1946, masters of  
18. seagoing vessels shall be recognized as agents of the United States authorized to document    
19. crew members as it applies to the shipping and discharge of seaman for purposes of employment. 
 
20. SECTION 5:  These replacements records shall satisfy all requirements for eligibility of service during  
21. the required timeframe 07 December, 1941 and 31 December, 1946. 
 
22. SECTION 6:  This bill will go into effect 91 days after passage. 
 
 

 

116



aoc

Lower Currituck Volunteer Fire Department
Po BoX 207

Grandy NC 27939
Phone 252 4532761

Fax 252 4534579
Chiefs Phone 252 9826240

March 25 2009

Currituck County Board ofCommissioners

The Lower Currituck Volunteer Fire Department has been in contact with the North Carolina
Department ofTransportation concerning the installation ofan emergency stop light in front of
the fire station at 8336 Caratoke hwy in Powells Point We have also talked to them about a
reduction ofthe speed limit in front ofthe fire station on Waterlily road from 55 to 45 alongwith the installation offire station caution signs We feel that these measures are important for
the safety ofnot only our members but for the safety ofthe citizens ofCurrituck County The
light will help us to get apparatus out ofthe South station in a timely and safe manner especiallyduring tourist season when the traffic can be rather heavy The reduction in the speed limit will
help with safety due to the fact that there is acurve in the road close to the fire station and cars
coming at the 55 mile an hour speed limit might not be able to see or hear safety equipment
coming from the station

They have informed us that the request has to come directly from the county and not the fire
department We are therefore requesting that the county petition the North Carolina DepartmentofTransportation for these safety features Thank you for your consideration on this matter

Sinc ely

Zirv
opeland

President LCVFD

117



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
April 6, 2009 
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 5:00 p.m. to discuss the 
Land Use Plan. 
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its 
regularly scheduled meeting at the Historic Courthouse in 
the Commissioners Meeting Room with the following members 
present:  Chairman Etheridge, Commissioners O’Neal, 
Aydlett, Nelms, Rorer, Gregory and Taylor. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
The Reverend Glenn McCranie was present to give the 
invocation. 
Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Presentation of Life Saving Certificate  to Deputy Bill Rutherford 

Item 4 Discussion on Support Our Students (SOS) funding   

Item 5 Phil Donahue, Albemarle Hospital,  to discuss the Community Care 
Clinic 

Item 6 Juanita Krause, discuss no OLF   

Item 7 Public Hearing and Action  PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson:  Request 
to amend the Currituck County Land Use Plan to designate 
approximately 57.58 acres of the Future Land Use map from Limited 
Service Area to Full Service Area and to amend Water Quality 
Policy (WQ5) to promote low impact development techniques.  The 
property is located on Fisher Landing Road, Jarvisburg, Tax Map 
96, Parcel 29C, Poplar Branch Township. To be continued to April 
20th meeting 

Item 8 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-61 High Cotton: Request for a 
Special Use Permit for 252 multi-family dwellings. The property is 
located at 1187 Caratoke Highway, Tax Map 22, Parcel 88, Moyock 
Township. To be continued to April 20th meeting                    

Item 9 Appointments to Whalehead Board of Trustees   

Item 10 Appointments to Library Board   

Item 11 Bid Award Recommendation for 16" Water Transmission Main   

Item 12 Consideration of bids for  Moyock Library-Furniture and Shelving  

Item 13 Consent Agenda: 
1. Resolution Adopting a Policy for Mutual Assistance with Other 

Law Enforcement Agencies 

118



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   2 

2. Amendment to Resolution Establishing ARSWA 
3. Approval of $2500 for NC Archaeological Society 
4. Resolution opposing SB758, Transfer of Secondary Roads to 

Counties and SB771, Reallocation Lottery Funds and Cigarette 
Tax increase 

5. Budget Amendments 
6. Surplus ambulance to Corolla Volunteer Fire & Rescue Squad, 

Inc. 
7. A R Chesson Change order for Knotts Island Station 
8. Resolution to DOT requesting road name changes 
9. Temple Grading - CO 2 & 3; Mainland Water Construction 
10. Mad Dawg, Inc - CO #1; Mainland Water Construction  
11. Caldwell Tank - CO #1; Mainland Water Construction 
12. Phoenix Fabricators - CO#1; Mainland Water Construction 
13. Columbian TacTank - CO#1; Knotts Island Fire Station 
14. Approval of March 16, 2009, Minutes 

Item 14 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 15 County Manager’s Report 

Item 16 Closed Session: 
1. According to GS 143-318.11.(1) to prevent the disclosure of 

information that is privileged (3) to consult with attorney in 
order to preserve the attorney-client privilege  

2. (6) to discuss personnel 
 

Approval of Agenda 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to amend the agenda by adding 
presentation by Corolla Wild Horse Fund.  Commissioner 
O’Neal seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on 
the regular agenda, please limit comments to 3 
minutes. 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public comment period. 

Sara Alford, expressed concerns with Moyock Sewer Plan and 
the cost.  She requested a public hearing. 

Commissioner Taylor moved to hold a town meeting to 
discuss. Commissioner O’Neal seconded the motion. 

Edith & Earl Brickhouse, Senior Tar Heel Representatives, 
presented the Board with an update of the requests for the 
General Assembly. 

Dennis Anderson, Grave Digger Monster Trucks, commented on 
the next County Fair and thanked the Board for their 
continued support and looked forward to meeting with them. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Etheridge closed 
the public comment period. 

119



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   3 

Presentation of Life Saving Certificate to Deputy Bill 
Rutherford 

Chairman Etheridge presented the certificate to Deputy 
Rutherford and commended him for his service. 

Sheriff Johnson, presented Deputy Rutherford an 
accommodation pin for his uniform. 

Presentation by Corolla Wild Horse Fund 

Karen McCalpin, Director, Wild Horse Fund, presented an 
update on the Corolla Wild Horse Fund and thanked the Board 
for their continued support. 

Commissioner Aydlett commended the Wild Horse Fund for 
their dedication to the Wild Horses. 

Discussion on Support Our Students (SOS) funding  

Ellen Owens, 4-H Director, reviewed the SOS Program. 

Commissioner Gregory moved to adopt the following 
resolution.  Commissioner Aydlett seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 

 
RESOLUTION 

SUPPORT OUR STUDENTS 
FUNDING 

 
WHEREAS, Currituck County has been informed that the 
Support Our Students programs across the state are being 
eliminated in the Governor’s budget proposal; and 
 
WHEREAS, this program serves over 100 students per year in 
Currituck County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SOS Program decreases the incidences of 
behavioral referrals during school and also increases 
school attendance: and 
 
WHEREAS, it provides opportunities to develop critical life 
skills through participation in public speaking 
competitions, project record book keeping, community 
service projects and other traditional 4-H Programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the youth served in the Program continues to 
increase annually. 
 

120



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   4 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Currituck County Board 
of Commissioners strongly support this program for our 
youth and request that funding be continued in the State 
Budget. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution be forwarded 
to Governor Perdue, Senator Basnight and Representative 
Owens. 

Phil Donahue, Albemarle Hospital, to discuss the Community 
Care Clinic 

Mr. Donahue, Vice President, Albemarle Hospital, stated 
that they provide free health service to the uninsured in 
Elizabeth City and Chowan County.  They treat 422 residents 
from Currituck County.   

Mr. Donahue, requested that the Board support an increase 
in funding from $5,000 to $15,000. 

Commissioner O’Neal stated he supports the request. 

Juanita Krause, discuss no OLF   

Juanita Krause, presented the history and research from the 
Hampton Roads Land Use Plan. 

Commissioner Taylor commended her and Troy Breathwaite on 
all their efforts for this project. 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson:  
Request to amend the Currituck County Land Use Plan to 
designate approximately 57.58 acres of the Future Land Use 
map from Limited Service Area to Full Service Area and to 
amend Water Quality Policy (WQ5) to promote low impact 
development techniques.  The property is located on Fisher 
Landing Road, Jarvisburg, Tax Map 96, Parcel 29C, Poplar 
Branch Township.  

To be continued to April 20 meeting 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-61 High Cotton: Request 
for a Special Use Permit for 252 multi-family dwellings. 
The property is located at 1187 Caratoke Highway, Tax Map 
22, Parcel 88, Moyock Township. 

To be continued to April 20 meeting                    

Appointments to Whalehead Board of Trustees  

121



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   5 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to accept the recommendations 
from the Board of Trustees.  Commissioner O’Neal seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried. 

Reappointed, Barbara Snowden, Sharon Twiddy, Bill Brumsey, 
IV.  Appointed, Cliff Scott, Michael Cherry and Jerry 
Wright.  

Appointments to Library Board   

Commissioner O’Neal moved to table.  Commissioner Aydlett 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Bid Award Recommendation for 16" Water Transmission Main  

Commissioner Nelms moved to award bid to Temple Grading, in 
the amount of $741,295.  Commissioner O’Neal seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried.  

Consideration of bids for Moyock Library-Furniture and 
Shelving  

Commissioner Nelms moved to approve in the amount of 
$237,524.05.  Commissioner Taylor seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 

The Board requested more information on the furniture. 

Consent Agenda: 
1. Resolution Adopting a Policy for Mutual         

Assistance with Other Law Enforcement Agencies 
2. Amendment to Resolution Establishing ARSWA 
3. Approval of $2500 for NC Archaeological Society 
4. Resolution opposing SB758, Transfer of 

Secondary Roads to Counties and SB771, 
Reallocation Lottery Funds and Cigarette Tax 
increase 

5. Budget Amendments 
6. Surplus ambulance to Corolla Volunteer Fire & 

Rescue Squad, Inc. 
7. A R Chesson Change order for Knotts Island 

Station 
8. Resolution to DOT requesting road name changes 
9. Temple Grading - CO 2 & 3; Mainland Water 

Construction 
10. Mad Dawg, Inc - CO #1; Mainland Water 

Construction  
11. Caldwell Tank - CO #1; Mainland Water 

Construction 
12. Phoenix Fabricators - CO#1; Mainland Water 

Construction 
122



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   6 

13. Columbian TacTank - CO#1; Knotts Island Fire 
Station 

14. Approval of March 16, 2009, Minutes 
 
Commissioner O’Neal moved to approve.  Commissioner Gregory 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING A POLICY FOR CURRITUCK COUNTY SHERIFF 
MUTUAL ASSISTANCE WITH OTHER LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §160A-288, the governing body of a 
county may adopt appropriate guidelines for the head of the county’s law enforcement 
agency to provide  mutual assistance with other municipal and county law enforcement 
agencies; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to said laws, the law enforcement assistance to be rendered 
authorizes lending officers to work temporarily with officers of the requesting agencies, 
including in an undercover capacity, and lending equipment and supplies; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interest of the citizens of Currituck 
County to adopt a reasonable policy and guidelines whereby reciprocal law enforcement 
assistance can be both rendered to and obtained from other governmental jurisdictions; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, such reciprocal assistance is necessary for effective law enforcement 
for the protection of the citizens of Currituck County. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CURRITUCK COUNTY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS THAT: 
 
Section 1.   The Currituck County Sheriff, (the “Sheriff”), is authorized to temporarily  
  provide assistance to another agency in enforcing the laws of the State of  
  North Carolina if requested by the head of the requesting agency in the  
  following manner: 

 
 a.   The Sheriff is hereby authorized to enter into mutual assistance  

  arrangements with other municipal and county law enforcement agencies,  
  provided that the head of the requesting law enforcement agency makes  
  such a request in writing. 

 
 b.  The Sheriff is hereby authorized to permit officers of the Sheriff’s  

  Office to work temporarily with officers of the requesting agency,   
  including in an undercover capacity, and the Sheriff may lend such  
  equipment and supplies to requesting agencies as he/she deems advisable. 

 
 c.  All such requests and authorizations shall be in accordance with N.C.  

  Gen. Stat. §160A-288. 
 

123



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   7 

 d.  While working with a requesting agency, an officer shall have the same 
  jurisdiction, powers, rights, privileges and immunities (including those  
  relating to the defense of civil actions and payment of judgments) as the  
  officers of the  requesting agency in addition to those the officer normally  
  possess. 

 
 e.  While on duty with the requesting agency, an officer shall be subject to  

  the lawful operational commands of the officer’s superior officers in the  
  requesting agency, but the officer shall for personnel and administrative  
  purposes, remain under the control of the officer’s own agency, including  
  for purposes of pay.  An officer shall furthermore be entitled to worker’s  
  compensation and the same benefits to the extent as though he were  
  functioning with the normal scope of the officer’s duties. 

 
f.  The Sheriff is hereby authorized to enter into mutual assistance 
agreements with other law enforcement agencies in accordance with such 
reasonable arrangements terms and conditions as may be agreed upon 
between the respective heads of the law enforcement agencies. 

 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING 
ALBEMARLE REGIONAL SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, the General Assembly of North Carolina has enacted the Solid Waste 

Management Act of 1989, Chapter 130A, Article 9 of the General Statutes of North Carolina 
(“Solid Waste Management Act”); and 
 

WHEREAS, Part 2A of the Solid Waste Management Act governs the storage collection, 
transport, separation, processing, recycling, and disposal of nonhazardous solid waste; and 
 

WHEREAS, Part 2A of the Solid Waste Management Act further mandates that each 
County, either individually or in cooperation with others, shall, in cooperation with its 
Municipalities, develop a comprehensive county solid waste management plan consistent with 
the State’s comprehensive solid waste plan, including provisions which address the State’s 
recycling goal; and 
 

WHEREAS, the General Assembly has enacted legislation providing for the creation of 
regional solid waste management authorities among units of local government in North Carolina, 
the legislation being codified in Chapter 153A, Article 22 of the General Statutes; and 
 

WHEREAS, Chowan, Currituck, Dare, Gates, Hyde, Perquimans, and Tyrrell Counties, 
being counties of the State of North Carolina (each a “Member Unit”), after due and diligent 
consideration, agreed to take action pursuant to Chapter 153A, Article 22 of the General Statutes 
to create the Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Management Authority by resolution dated 
September 21, 1992 (the “Initial Resolution”); and 
 

WHEREAS the governing bodies of each Member Unit have unanimously agreed, 
pursuant to Article XI of the Initial Resolution, to amend the Initial Resolution. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Authority and the Boards of 
Commissioners of Chowan, Currituck, Dare, Gates, Hyde, Perquimans, and Tyrrell Counties, in 
separate sessions duly convened, by the adoption and enactment of this resolution by the 
Authority and each of the Boards, that the Initial Resolution be amended and that this amended 

124



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   8 

resolution supersede and replace the Initial Resolution in its entirety( the “Amended Resolution” 
or “Charter”): 

ARTICLE I 
 

The name of this Authority shall be the ALBEMARLE REGIONAL SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY. 
 

ARTICLE II 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 

The following terms are defined terms under this Amended Resolution and shall have the 
meanings as indicated: 
 

1.  Statutory Definitions - The terms enumerated in Part 1 of the Solid Waste 
Management Act shall have the meanings as set forth therein.  In the event of any 
inconsistencies between the definitions of the terms as set forth in the Solid Waste Management 
Act and the terms as set forth in this Charter, the definition as set forth in the Solid Waste 
Management Act shall control. 
 

2.  Authority - The Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Management Authority, 
established pursuant to Chapter 153A, Article 22 of the General Statutes of North Carolina. 
 

3. Charter - The articles and sections of this Amended Resolution. 
 
4. Solid Waste Management Project - Categorically defines and encompasses all of 

the terms as set forth in this Charter and in Part 1 of the Solid Waste Management Act, unless 
otherwise specifically indicated. 
 

5. Solid Waste Disposal System – Any and all facilities now or later designated by 
the Authority as part of its system for the management and disposal of solid waste including, but 
not limited to recycling and other volume reduction facilities, sanitary landfills, or other disposal 
means, resource recovery facilities (including steam production and electrical generating 
facilities using solid waste as fuel), composting, recycling and transfer stations, roads, water 
lines, wastewater lines and treatment facilities to the extent provided or operated to carry out the 
provisions of the Solid Waste Management Act, and all buildings, fixtures, equipment and all 
property, real and personal now or hereafter owned, leased, operated or used by Authority, all for 
the purpose of providing for solid waste disposal, as of the date of enactment of this Charter. 
 

6. Waste Hauler – Any person, firm, corporation or other entity engaged, in whole or 
part, in the collection, transportation, delivery, or disposal of solid waste generated within the 
service area, including any entity engaged in activities with respect to solid waste generated by 
the entity as well as any entity engaged in such activities with respect to solid waste generated by 
others. 
 

7. Regional Landfills - Any landfill developed and operated by the Authority in 
locations within the service area or designated by the Authority for the disposal of disposable 
solid waste. 
 

8. Service Area - The geographic area encompassing the territorial jurisdiction o the 
Member Units of the Authority. 
 

9. Solid Waste - All material customarily referred to as garbage, refuse, recyclables 
and other discarded material, including solid, liquid, semisolid, or contained gaseous material 
resulting from industrial, commercial, mining, and agricultural operations, and from community 
activities, including special waste that may be disposed of at a municipal solid waste landfill, but 
does not include solid or dissolved material in domestic sewage, or solid or dissolved materials 
in irrigation return flows or industrial discharges which are point sources subject to permits 
under Section 402 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C.A. § 1342) 

125



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   9 

or source, special nuclear, or byproduct materials as defined by Section 11 of the Atomic Energy 
Act of 1954, as amended (42 U.S.C.A. § 2014). 
 

10. Disposable Solid Waste - Any solid waste other than hazardous waste. 
 
11. Plan of Operation - A plan adopted by the Authority setting forth the types of 

material acceptable to the Authority for disposal, times and places where material will be 
received by the Authority, methods of collecting fees charged by the Authority for disposal 
service, and other information describing operating procedures control, use of the disposal 
service, and providing instruction and guidelines to users of the system. 
 

12. Service Charge - Any charge made by the Authority for the management of solid 
waste. 
  

ARTICLE III 
 

DECLARATION OF PURPOSE 
 

It is the purpose of this Charter to require all inhabitants and entities within the service 
area and all governmental agencies, to use exclusively the solid waste disposal system operated, 
maintained or designated by the Authority for the disposal of all solid waste generated within or 
brought within the service area; to establish a schedule of fees, rates, charges and assessments 
for the management of solid waste to pay for the costs of the financing and the operation and 
maintenance of the solid waste disposal system; and to provide for a method and procedure for 
the collection of established fees, rates, charges and assessments. 
 

The purpose of the Authority is to provide environmentally sound, cost effective 
management of solid waste, including storage, collection, transportation, separation, processing, 
recycling, and disposal of solid waste in order to protect the public health, safety, and welfare; 
enhance the environment for the people of this State, and recover resources and energy which 
have the potential for further use and to encourage, implement and promote the purposes set 
forth in Part 2A of the Solid Waste Management Act. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 

FINDINGS 
 

1. It is necessary for the promotion of the common interest of the people of the 
service area to provide for the effectuation and financing of a solid waste disposal system, and it 
is necessary for the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens and residents of the service area to 
provide an adequate solid waste disposal system for all residents and commercial, industrial and 
agricultural operators within the service area. 
 

2. The Authority may issue solid waste and resource recovery bonds (“Bonds”) to 
finance the acquisition, construction, planning, permitting, design, management and operation of 
the solid waste disposal system, which bonds among other things, would obligate the Authority 
to impose, by law, service charges within the service area for use of the solid waste disposal 
system.  The Authority will also make significant contractual commitments of financial 
resources, including authorization of revenue bonds, to provide for the construction, planning, 
permitting design, management and operation and maintenance of facilities as part of the system 
to provide and assure the safe and efficient disposal, transfer and resource recovery of solid 
waste generated within the service area to meet the needs of residents of the service area. 
 

3. The feasibility of construction, planning, permitting, design, management and 
maintenance of facilities as part of the disposal system to meet present and future needs of the 
residents of the service area and the ability of the Authority to generate revenues sufficient to 
liquidate the bonded indebtedness to be incurred by the Authority to finance the construction of 
facilities as part of the system depends upon the ability to obtain the type and quantity of 
operational volumes of solid waste needed to make such facilities economically viable. 

126



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   10 

 
4. The Solid Waste Management Act authorizes the Authority to construct, operate 

and maintain or contract with entities for the construction, operation and maintenance of the 
solid waste disposal system for the use and benefit of the inhabitants of the service area and 
grants to the Authority the power: 
 

(a) To require the inhabitants of the service area to use the solid waste disposal 
system established by the Authority exclusive of any other facilities being 
operated or maintained by any other governmental authorities or private parties; 

 
(b) To prescribe, fix, establish and collect rates, fees, assessments, rentals or other 

charges for the use of the solid waste disposal system and to pledge revenues 
as security for the payment of bonds issued under legal authority for the 
purchase, construction, planning, permitting design, management and operation 
of the solid waste disposal system; and 

(c) To require any waste hauler who accepts solid waste in the service area to use 
the Solid Waste Disposal System of the Authority. 

 
5. The inefficient and improper methods of managing solid waste create hazards to 

public health, cause pollution of the air and water resources, constitute a waste of natural 
resources, have an adverse effect on land values and create public nuisances. 
 

6. The potential operation of numerous independent and separate solid waste 
facilities within the service area with varying standards of operation and control creates a serious 
and critical health and safety problem to all of the citizens of the service area and the use of one 
solid waste disposal system operating uniformly and with minimum ecological impact in the 
service area is vital and imperative to the health, safety and welfare of the people of the service 
area and other living things. 
 

7. The Solid Waste Management Act grants the Authority the power to provide for 
and regulate solid waste collection and disposal. 
 

8. The service area has limited land and resources for the disposal, transfer and 
recovery of resources from solid waste and it is the responsibility of the units of local 
government within the service area to protect and judiciously utilize limited land and resources. 
 

9.  The Authority is developing the disposal system as a regional waste disposal 
and recovery system within the framework of a regional solid waste management plan of 
operation in cooperation with federal, state and local agencies for the benefit of all citizens of the 
service area. 

 
10. The provisions of this Charter are intended to be, and they shall constitute, the 

exercise by the Authority of the powers and authority granted to it under the Solid Waste 
Management Act and Chapter 153A, Article 22 of the General Statutes of North Carolina. 
 
 

ARTICLE V 
 

POWERS DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS 
 

Section 1. 
 

POWERS 
 

This Authority shall possess the following powers: 
 
(1) To apply for, accept, receive, and disburse funds and grants made available to it 

by the State of North Carolina or any agency thereof, the United States of America or any agency 
thereof, any unit of local government whether or not a Member Unit of the authority, any private 

127



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   11 

or civic agency, and any persons, firms, or corporations; 
 

(2) To employ personnel; 
 
(3) To contract with consultants; 
 
(4) To contract with the United States of America or any agency or instrumentality 

Thereof, the State of North Carolina or any agency, instrumentality, political subdivision, or 
municipality thereof, or any private corporation, partnership, association, or individual, 
providing for the acquisition, construction, improvement, enlargement, operation or maintenance 
of any solid waste management facility, or providing for any solid waste management services; 
 

(5) To adopt bylaws for the regulation of its affairs and the conduct of its business 
and to prescribe rules and policies in connection with the performance of its functions and duties, 
not inconsistent with Article 22 of Chapter 153A of the North Carolina General Statutes; 
 

(6) To adopt an official seal and alter the same; 
 
(7) To establish and maintain suitable administrative buildings or offices at such 

places as it may determine by purchase, construction, lease, or other arrangements either by the 
Authority alone or through appropriate cost-sharing arrangements with any unit of local 
government or other person; 
 

(8) To sue and be sued in its own name, and to plead and be impleaded; 
 
(9) To receive, administer, and comply with the conditions and requirements 

respecting any gift, grant, or donation of any property or money; 
 

(10) To acquire by purchase, lease, gift, or otherwise, or to obtain options for the 
acquisition of any property, real or personal, improved or unimproved, including an interest in 
land less than the fee thereof; 
 

(11) To sell, lease, exchange, transfer, or otherwise dispose of, or to grant options for 
any such purposes with respect to any real or personal property or interest in such property; 
 

(12) To pledge, assign, mortgage, or otherwise grant a security interest in any real or 
personal property or interest in such property, including the right and power to pledge, assign, or 
otherwise grant a security interest in money, rents, charges, or other revenues and any proceeds 
derived by the Authority from any and all sources; 
 

(13) To issue revenue bonds of the Authority and enter into other financial 
arrangements including those permitted by Chapter 153A, Article 22, and Chapters 159, 159I, 
and 160A of the General Statutes of North Carolina to finance solid waste management 
activities, including, but not limited to systems and facilities for waste reduction, materials 
recovery, recycling, resource recovery, landfilling, ash management, and disposal and for related 
support facilities, to refund any revenue bonds or notes issued by the Authority, whether or not in 
advance of their maturity or earliest redemption date, or to provide funds for other corporate 
purposes of the Authority; 
 

(14) With the approval of any member unit of local government to use officers, 
Employees, agents and facilities of the member unit of local government for such purposes and 
upon such terms as maybe mutually agreeable; 
 

(15) To develop and make data, plans, information, surveys, and studies of solid 
waste management facilities within the territorial jurisdiction of the members of the Authority, and 
to prepare and make recommendations in regard thereto; 

 
(l6) To study, plan, design, construct, operate, acquire, lease, and improve systems 

and facilities, including systems and facilities for waste reduction, materials recovery, recycling, 

128



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   12 

resource recovery, landfilling, ash management, household hazardous waste management, 
transportation, disposal and public education regarding solid waste management, in order to 
provide environmentally sound, cost-effective management of solid waste, including storage, 
collection, transporting, separation, processing, recycling and disposal of solid waste in order to 
protect the public health, safety and welfare; to enhance the environment for the people of the 
service area; recover resources and energy which have the potential for further use, and to 
promote and implement the purposes set forth in Part 2A of the Solid Waste Management Act; 
 

(17) To locate solid waste facilities, including ancillary support facilities, as the 
Authority may see fit; 

(18) To assume any responsibility for disposal and management of solid waste 
imposed by law on any member unit of local government; 
 

(19) To operate such facilities together with any person, firm, corporation, the State of 
North Carolina, any entity of the State, or any unit oflocal government as appropriate and 
otherwise permitted by this Charter and the laws of the State of North Carolina; 
 

(20) To set and collect such fees and charges as is reasonable to offset operating 
costs, debt service, and capital reserve requirements of the Authority; 

 
(21) To apply to the appropriate agencies of the State, the United States of America 

or any state thereof, and to any other appropriate agency for such permits, licenses, certificates 
or approvals as may be necessary and to construct, maintain, and operate projects in accordance 
with such permits, licenses, certificates, or approvals in the same manner as any other person or 
operating unit of any other person; 
 

(22) (i)  To employ engineers, architects, attorneys, real estate counselors, 
appraisers, financial advisors, and such other consultants and employees as maybe required in 
the judgment of the Authority, and to fix and pay their compensation from funds available to the 
Authority therefor, and  (ii)  to select and retain, subject to approval of the North Carolina Local 
Government Commission, the financial consultants, underwriters, and bond attorneys to be 
associated with the issuance of any revenue bonds, and to fix and pay for services rendered by 
financial consultants, underwriters, or bond attorneys from funds available to the Authority, 
including the proceeds of any revenue bond issue with regard to which the services were 
performed; 
 

(23) To acquire property located within the territorial jurisdiction of any member unit of 
local government by eminent domain pursuant to authority granted to counties; 

 
(24) To require that any and all (i) solid waste generated within the Authority’s service 

area and (ii) recyclable materials generated within the Authority’s service area and transferred to 
the Authority be separated and delivered to specific locations and facilities. 
 

(25) To do all things necessary, convenient, or desirable to carry out the purposes 
and to exercise the powers granted to the Authority under this Charter. 

 
Section 2. 

 
FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES 

 
The functions and duties of the Authority shall include, but not be limited to the 

Following: 
 

(1) The planning, design, construction, financing, management, ownership, 
operation and maintenance of solid waste disposal, volume reduction and resource recovery 
facilities and all related solid waste receiving, transfer, recycling, storage, transportation and 
waste handling and general support facilities considered by the Authority to be necessary, 
desirable, convenient or appropriate in carrying out the Plan of Operation and in establishing, 

129



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   13 

managing and operating solid waste disposal and resource recovery systems and their 
component waste processing facilities and equipment; 

 
(2) The provision of solid waste management services to municipalities, regions and 

persons within the service area, or other places as maybe designated by the Authority, by 
receiving solid wastes at the Authority facilities, pursuant to contracts between the Authority and 
such agencies, municipalities, persons, regions and business entities; the recovery of material 
and energy resources and resource values from such solid wastes and the production from such 
services and resources recovery operations of revenues sufficient to provide for the support of 
the Authority and its operations; 
 

(3) The development, implementation and supervision of a program requiring all 
persons who haul, convey or transport any solid waste within the Authority’s service area to 
obtain a license. The Authority may enter into an administrative agreement with any county, 
municipality or other political subdivision under which agreement the licensing program 
referenced herein may be conducted by the county, municipality or other political subdivision. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
 

BOARD OF DELEGATES 
 

The powers of the Authority shall be exercised by the Board of Delegates, composed as 
Follows: 
 

MEMBER UNIT      NUMBER OF DELEGATES 
 
Chowan…………………………………………………………………………1 
Currituck………………………………………………………………………..1 
Dare……………………………………………………………………………..1 
Gates……………………………………………………………………………1 
Hyde…………………………………………………………………………….1 
Perquimans…………………………………………………………………….1 
Tyrrell……………………………………………………………………………1 

 
 

The governing body of each Member Unit shall appoint residents of the Member Unit to 
the board as the Member Unit’s delegate and may appoint one alternate for each delegate who 
may attend meetings of the Authority Board, but who shall be entitled to vote only in the absence 
of any one delegate designated by the appointing Member Unit. Each delegate and alternate 
shall serve at the pleasure of the appointing body for a term of four years. Any delegate or 
alternate may be removed, with or without cause, by the governing body of the appointing 
Member Unit. Each delegate and alternate on the board shall hold office until that delegate’s or 
Alternate’s successor is appointed and qualified. Any delegate and alternate shall be eligible for 
reappointment to succeed themselves. 
 
 
 

The Authority Board shall annually in March elect a Chairman and Vice-Chairman by 
simple majority vote of those delegates present and voting at a properly constituted meeting. No 
alternate delegate shall be eligible to hold the office of Chairman or Vice-Chairman. 
 

A vacancy on the Board shall be filled by appointment by the governing board of the 
Member Unit of local government having the original appointment with the term of office for the 
new appointee being the unexpired term of the original appointee. 
 

The names and addresses of the delegates and alternate Member Units, the names of 
the appointing political subdivisions, and the year of expiration of the term of the Member Units 
are as follows: 

 

130



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   14 

NAME      ADDRESS   EXPIRATION OF TERM 
 

Chowan 
 
[Authority to add]  Delegate     December 31, 2011 

Alternate     December 31, 2011 
 

Currituck 
 

Delegate     December 31, 2012 
Alternate     December 31, 2012 

 
Dare 

 
Delegate     December 31, 2010 
Alternate     December 31, 2010 

 
Gates 
 

Delegate     December 31, 2011 
Alternate     December 31, 2011 

 
Hyde 

 
Delegate     December 31, 2012 
Alternate     December 31, 2012 

 
Perquimans 

 
Delegate     December 31, 2010 
Alternate     December 31, 2010 
 

Tyrrell 
 

Delegate     December 31, 2011 
Alternate     December 31, 2011 
 

Delegates and alternates shall be compensated for attendance at meetings of the 
Authority board and reimbursed for expenses incurred by them in the course of their duties upon 
presentation of proper vouchers for those expenses. Such compensation and reimbursement of 
expenses shall be pursuant to a schedule proposed by the Authority’s executive director and 
approved by a majority vote of the Member Units. 
 
 
 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
 

FINANCES 
 

Funding for administrative and general operational requirements of the Authority to 
include planning, permitting, design, acquisition, construction and management of the Solid 
Waste Disposal System and other Authority purposes as provided in the Charter will initially be 
provided by Member Units of the Authority. Each Member Unit’s proportionate share will be 
determined by simple majority vote, an annual budget for each up-coming fiscal year which shall 
be submitted to the Member Units not later than May 1. The budget shall be funded first by 
revenues generated by operations of the Authority based on tonnage of solid waste disposed of 
by Member Units and agreed rates charged to non-Member Unit users and, secondarily, in the 

131



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   15 

event of an emergency as determined by a simple majority vote of the Member Units of the 
Authority, by revenues generated by assessments of Member Units, the assessments to be 
determined based on the tonnage of solid waste disposed of by an Authority Member Unit during 
the previous calendar year. 
 

A Member Unit of the Authority shall be excluded from access to and utilization of the 
Authority’s facilities if that Member Unit fails to contribute its assessed proportionate share for 
the operation of the Authority within thirty 30 days from the date of the establishment of such 
assessment. 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

LOCATION OF REGIONAL LANDFILL 
 

Each Member Unit covenants that it will support and accept the Authority’s location 
And/or expansion of a regional landfill within the Member Unit’s jurisdiction. 
 

ARTICLE IX 
 

WITHDRAWAL 
 

If the Authority has no outstanding indebtedness or existing contractual obligations, any 
Member Unit may withdraw from the Authority effective at the end of the current fiscal year by 
giving at least six months notice in writing to each of the other Member Units. Withdrawal of a 
Member Unit shall not dissolve the Authority if at least two Member Units remain. 
 

Upon any Member Unit’s withdrawal from the Authority, that Member Unit may still 
continue to use the solid waste disposal system described in this Charter, however, that Member 
Unit shall be required to pay whatever rates are charged to non-Member Unit counties, 
Municipalities, business and other persons by the owner or operator of the relevant solid waste 
disposal system. 
 

ARTICLE X 
 

AUDIT 
 

The Authority shall cause to be made an annual audit of its books and records by an 
independent certified public accountant at the end of each fiscal year and a certified copy of the 
audit shall be filed promptly with the governing body of each Member Unit. 
 

ARTICLE XI 
 

AMENDMENTS 
 

This Charter may he amended in writing by a unanimous vote of the governing bodies of 
the Member Units of the Authority provided that if a private landfill shall be substantially 
affected by such amendment then the Authority shall be required to give the operator of the 
affected landfill at least two years written notice prior to the effective date of the amendment. 
 

ARTICLE XII 
 

DISSOLUTION 
 

If there is no outstanding indebtedness and no existing contractual obligations, the 
Authority may be dissolved by a vote of the super majority of the Member Units. The Member 
Unit in which the Authority’s landfill(s) and/or transfer station(s), if any, are located at the time 
of dissolution shall have the right of first refusal to purchase the Authority’s landfill at fair 
market value. The proceeds that may be derived from the sale of the Authority’s landfill(s) 
and/or transfer station(s), if any, and all other assets of the Authority shall be distributed among 

132



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   16 

the Member Units pursuant to the following formula: 
 
 
 
 
Tonnage of solid waste 
disposed of by Member Unit 
during life of Authority    X    Total dollar value of  = Member Unit’s 
Total amount of tonnage  Authority’s assets  share 
disposed of by Authority 
during Authority’s life 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR CURRITUCK 
COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA OPPOSING SENATE BILL 758 AND THE 

TRANFER OF SECONDARY ROADS TO COUNTIES  
 
 WHEREAS, in 1931, during the midst of the Great Depression and at a time 
North Carolina counties were under financial distress, the State of North Carolina 
removed county authority to construct, maintain and operate public roads; and  
 
 WHEREAS, a unified system for the construction, maintenance and operation of 
public roads strengthened North Carolina’s standing as the “Good Roads State”  resulting 
in a transportation system vitally important to the economic well being of North 
Carolina’s people; and  
 
 WHEREAS, there is introduced in the North Carolina State Senate S758 which 
will return North Carolina’s transportation network to 1931 status by requiring counties 
to once again take on the responsibility for the secondary public roads located in each 
county  thus reversing a seventy-eight year practice that has created a consistently reliable 
public transportation system envied by other states; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the year 2009, in the midst of the greatest financial disaster since the 
Great Depression and at a time North Carolina counties are again under financial distress, 
is not the time to consider placing the burden for public road construction, maintenance 
and operation on local government and replace a unified system with one hundred 
different standards for road construction, maintenance and repair.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for 
Currituck County, North Carolina that: 
 
 Section 1.  Currituck County opposes S758 and the transfer of secondary road 
responsibility to North Carolina counties and requests that Senator Marc Basnight and 
Representative Bill Owens also oppose and take all action within their authority and 
power to ensure defeat of S758.  
 
 Section 2.  The Clerk to the Board is directed to forward a certified copy of this 
resolution to Senator Marc Basnight and Representative Bill Owens.   
 
 Section 3.  This resolution is effective upon its adoption. 
 

133



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   17 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR CURRITUCK 

COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA OPPOSING GOVERNOR PERDUE’S 
PROPOSAL TO INCREASE THE CIGARETTE TAX  

 
 
 WHEREAS, Governor Perdue has proposed an additional one dollar of tax on 
each pack of cigarettes as a source of revenue for the 2009-2011 Biennial Budget; and  
 
 WHEREAS, county residents work or have worked in jobs related to cigarette 
distribution and sales and have benefited from working such jobs in a county bordering 
the Commonwealth of Virginia with higher cigarette taxes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, an increase in the state cigarette tax as proposed by Governor Perdue 
will encourage those who regularly purchase cigarettes in Currituck County and State of 
North Carolina to instead spend their money in the Commonwealth of Virginia; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the loss of customer base by Currituck County businesses will result 
in the loss of jobs and certainly sales tax revenue now remitted to the county and State of 
North Carolina to the detriment of citizens and businesses alike.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for 
Currituck County, North Carolina that: 
 
 Section 1.  Currituck County opposes Governor Perdue’s proposed increase in 
cigarette tax by one dollar per pack and requests that Senator Marc Basnight and 
Representative Bill Owens also oppose a state budget relying on such tax as a source of 
revenue.   
 Section 2.  The Clerk to the Board is directed to forward a certified copy of this 
resolution to Senator Marc Basnight and Representative Bill Owens.   

 
 

 
Resolution 

 Road Name Changes 
 

WHREAS, due to the (SR 1222) Tulls Creek Road realignment there needs to be some 
road name changes, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners will hold a public hearing after the NC Board 
of Transportation considers our request. 
 
Now, therefore, be it resolved, that the Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
request the NC Board of Transportation to consider the following road name changes.  
Maps are attached: 
 
SR 1228 from Shingle Landing Road, change to Camellia Drive 
A portion of SR 1216 from Puddin Ridge Road, change to Fire Station Court 
A portion of SR 1222  from Tulls Creek Road, change to Shingle Landing Road. 

134



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   18 

 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10660-516000  Repairs and Maintenance   $                       500    
10660-532000  Supplies     $                     500  
       
     $                       500    $                     500  
       
Explanation: 
 

Planning (10660) - To transfer funds for repairs to Jeep in the planning 
department. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10330-432800  Daycare   $                105,260    
10752-519600  Child Daycare     $              105,260  
       
     $                105,260    $              105,260  
       
Explanation: 
 

Social Services - Public Assistance (10752) - To decrease budget due to decrease 
in State allocation. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Decreased by $105,260. 

 
 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       

55818-588003  
Contingency - Dist 
System   $                182,776    

55818-593008  
Dist Sys - RO Outfall 
Main     $                84,898  

135



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   19 

55818-594000  Water Tank-Harbinger     $                97,878  
       
     $                182,776    $              182,776  
       
Explanation: 
 
 
 

Mainland Water Construction (55818) - To transfer funds for liquidated damages 
onCaldwell Tanks, Inc. contract change order 1 and Temple Grading & 
Construction Company Inc contract change orders 2 and for additional services on 
Temple Grading & Construction Company Inc contract change order 3. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Mainland Water Construction Fund (55) - No change. 

 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
50548-570000  Reimburseable Expenses   $                    4,262    
50548-545000  Contracted services   $                    5,116    
50548-588000  Contingency     $                  9,378  
       
     $                    9,378    $                  9,378  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

Knotts Island VFD Construction (50548) - To transfer funds from contingency for 
reimburseable expenses throughout the project and for AR Chesson change order 
#4 for hose/electrical reels in bays. 

Net Budget 
Effect: County Governmental Construction (50) - No change. 

 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10790-532441  Technology under $1,000   $                       400    
10790-532000  Supplies     $                     400  
       
     $                       400    $                     400  
       
Explanation: 
 

Library (10790) - To transfer budgeted funds to replace printer in the Corolla 
library. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account  Account Description  Increase Expense  Decrease 

136



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   20 

Number Expense 
       
10541-511010  Data Transmission   $                    2,065    
10541-514000  Travel     $                     500  
10541-526000  Advertising     $                     200  
10350-464000  Rents     $                  1,365  
       
     $                    2,065    $                  2,065  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

Fire Services (10541) - Transfer funds for air cards for James Mims and per 
Memorandum of Understanding with Moyock, Corolla and Carova Beach Fire 
Departments. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $1,365. 

 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10511-532000  Supplies   $                    4,500    
10511-516000  Maintenance & Repair   $                    3,000    
10511-547000  Meals   $                  40,000    
10511-554000  Insurance & Bonds   $                          1    
10511-513000  Utilities     $                  3,500  
10511-514000  Travel     $                  4,001  
10511-590441  Technology Over $1,000     $                27,000  
10510-511010  Data Transmission     $                13,000  
       
     $                  47,501    $                47,501  
       
       
Explanation: 
 

Jail (10511); Sheriff (10510) - Transfer for operations for the remainder of this 
fiscal year. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.. 

 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10530-590000  Capital Outlay   $                751,375    

10390-490000  
Proceeds of Debt 
Issuance     $              751,375  

       

137



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   21 

     $                751,375    $              751,375  
       
       
Explanation: 

 

Emergency Medical Services (10530) - To record receipt of debt proceeds to 
purchase five ambulances, which were approved during the FY 2009 budget 
process. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $751,375. 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, North Carolina during 
its regularly scheduled meeting held on April 6, 2009, authorized the following, pursuant 
to GS 160A and 270(b), that the property listed below be transferred to the Corolla 
Volunteer Fire & Rescue Squad, Inc. 
 
Asset Tag  Description    Serial Number 
 
    6021  1999 Ford Ambulance E-350  1FDWE30FOXHA71725 

 

Commissioner’s Report 

Commissioner Taylor requested a letter be sent to DOT for a 
turn lane on Tulls Creek Road while the Shingle Landing 
bridge was being repaired. 

Commissioner Gregory stated that the County has been 
working for 5 years on the Moyock Sewer System. 

Commissioner Aydlett, stated that there would be an 
official opening of the Knotts Island Fire Department soon. 

Commissioner O’Neal requested a date to be scheduled to 
meet with the YMCA officials.  He also would like an update 
on the Currituck Sound Study and funding. 

 

County Manager’s Report 

Mr. Scanlon, stated that the water system will be complete 
by May 19, 2009, and within budget. 

Closed Session: 
According to GS 143-318.11.(1) to prevent the 
disclosure of information that is privileged (3) 
to consult with attorney in order to preserve the 
attorney-client privilege  
(6) to discuss personnel 

138



April 6, 2009, BOC Meeting   22 

 
Commissioner Aydlett moved to go into closed session. 
Commissioner Taylor seconded the motion.  Motion carried 
 
Adjourn 
After reconvening from closed session, no action was taken.  
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 

139


	Agenda
	CCHS D.R.E.A.M. Team Request Regarding Maple Park 
	D.R.E.A.M. Team Request

	Consideration and Discussion:
	Wild Horse Tour Recommendations

	Consideration and Action
	PB 04-45 extension request

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 09-04 case analysis
	PB 09-04 supplemental information

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 08-61 case analysis
	PB 08-61 site plan
	PB 08-61 open space exhibit
	PB 08-61 supplemental information

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 08-49 case analysis

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 09-10 case analysis

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 08-60 case analysis

	Appointments to Library Board
	Library Board Appts

	Budget Amendments
	Budget Amendments Apr 20

	Crowder Construction Co CO#4
	Crowder CO4

	Charge Tax Collector the Levy on Motor Vehicles for January Renewals 
	Tax Levy on Motor Vehicles

	Resolution supporting an alternative method of recognition for veterans status to Merchant Marine Seamen of WWII
	Merchant Marine Resolution

	Petition to DOT 
	LCVFD Stop Light 

	Approval of April 6, 2009, Minutes
	April 6 Minutes


